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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 58" Annual General Meeting of the members of STAR
WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED will be held on Thursday, the 30" day of September. 2021
at 11.00 A.M. at its Registered Office at 35, Link Road, 2™ Floor, Lajpat Nagar-11I,
New Delhi-110024 to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1
L.

2

wn

To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2021, including Balance Sheet as at 31
March, 2021, the statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and
the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To declare 4 % dividend on preference shares.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Samir Gupta (DIN 00054308), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN 00054145), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, otfers himself for re-appointment.

To authorize Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory
Auditors tor the tinancial year 2021-22 and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT .pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 read with relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment thereof, for the time being in
force). the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of
Statutory Auditors tfor the tinancial vear 2021-22."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to
give effect to this resolution.™
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6.

To ratify the remuneration to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2021-22
and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force}, the remuneration payable to M/s. .
Chander & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Regn. No.100105) appointed by the
Board as Cost Auditors to conduct Audit of the cost records of the Company for the
Financial Year 2021-22, as set out in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening
this meeting, be and is hereby ratified.”

Place: New Delhi By order of the Board of Directors
Date: 28.08.2021 0 I
W/
(Rekha Sharma )

Joint GM Legal & Company Secretary
M.NO.-FCS-6428
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Notes:

1.

L

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (THE MEETING) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE ON A POLL, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF.

THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT
APPOINTING 4 PROXY SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A PROXY CAN ACT ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND
HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS.

A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A
SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY FOR HIS ENTIRE SHAREHOLDING AND SUCH
PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANOTHER PERSON OR
SHAREHOLDER.

THE PROXY HOLDER SHALL PROVE HIS IDENTITY AT THE TIME OF
ATTENDING THE MEETING.

WHEN A MEMBER APPOINTS A4 PROXY AND BOTH THE MEMBER AND PROXY
ATTEND THE MEETING, THE PROXY STANDS AUTOMATICALLY REVOKED.

REQUISITION FOR INSPECTION OF PROXIES SHALL HAVE TO BE MADE IN
WRITING BY MEMBERS ENTITLED TO VOTE ON ANY RESOLUTION THREE DAYS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

PROXIES SHALL BE MADE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION DURING TWENTY
FOUR HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING AND ENDING WITH THE CONCLUSION OF THE MEETING.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of the businesses set out above is annexed hereto.

Corporate members are required to send to the Company a Certified copy of the
Board Resolution, pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act 2013,
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Members are requested to bring their attendance slip duly signed as per the
specimen signature recorded with the Company for admission into the Meeting
Hall along with their copy of annual report to the meeting.

Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their
Client ID and DP ID Numbers and who hold shares in physical form are
requested to write their Folio Number in the attendance slip for attending
meeting.

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares in
physical form are advised to file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with
the Company’s share transfer agent. In respect of shares held in electronic/
Dematerialized form, the members may please contact their respective
depository participant.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is
higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

In terms of provisions of Section 136(1) read with its relevant provision of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report is being sent to the members of the
Company. The said Annual Report along with the documents stated in the notice
are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all
working days except Saturday, between 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. up to the date of
Meeting and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
and any member interested in obtaining such information may write to the
Company Secretary and the same will be furnished without any fee and free of
cost.

In terms of Article of Association of the Company, Mr. Samir Gupta (DIN
00054308) and Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN 00054145), Directors are liable to
retire by rotation and being eligible offered themselves for re-appointment as
Directors. The Board of Directors of the Company recommends their re-
appointment.

Relevant Documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for
inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company on all
working days except Saturday, between 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. up to the date of
Meeting and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding,
maintained under Section 170 and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in
which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rules issued thereunder and other statutory Registers will
be available for inspection by the members at the Meeting

For the purpose of determining the names of the Members eligible for dividend
on Preference Shares, if declared at the rm%eting,i?.‘)th September, 2021 has been
fixed as Record Date. The dividend, if declared, will be paid on or after 30
September, 2021 to the Shareholders, whose names will appear in the Register
of Member on 29" September, 2021.

Queries on accounts and operations of the Company, if any, my please be sent at
the Corporate Office of the Company, at least seven days in advance of the
meeting so that the answers may be made readily available at the meeting.

In keeping with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ Green Initiative measures,
the Company hereby requests members who have not registered their email
addresses so far, to register their email addresses for receiving all
communication including annual report, notices, circulars etc. from the
Company electronically.

Place: New Delhi By order of the Board of Directors
Date: 28.08.2021

%ﬁf/

(Rekha Sharma )
Joint GM Legal & Company Secretary
M. NO.-FCS 6428

L



STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
Regd. Office : 35 Link Road, 2™ Floor, Lajpat Nagar-I1I, New Delhi-110024
Tel No.-011-29832650-52 Fax-011-29832542
www.starwire.in , infol@starwire.in
CIN: U27109DL1963PLC117600

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 the following Explanatory
Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Businesses set out from Item
No. 6 of the accompanying Notice dated 28.08.2021.

Item No. 6 Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditor

As the members are aware, in terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 3A and Rule 4 of Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company
is required to appoint a Cost Auditor to conduct Audit of the cost records of the
Company, M/s S. Chander & Associates, Cost Accountants have been appointed as the
Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 by the Board of
Directors, in its meeting held on 28 August, 2021, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee of the Company. The Board has fixed remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000/-
(Rupees One Lac Fifty Thousand only).

In terms of dection 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of the Cost Auditors fixed by the Board of
Directors shall be ratified by the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and

KMP is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this Resolution. The Board
commends the Resolution for approval of the members as an Ordinary Resolution.
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PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 Form No. MGT-11]

CIN : U27109DL1963PLC117600

Name of the Company : Star Wire (India) Limited

Registered Office - 35, Link Road, 2™ Floor, Lajpat Nagar-IIT, New Delhi - 110024.
Website D Www.starwire.in

Name : address:

E-mail Id: Folio No./DP ID No.- Client ID No.

I / We, being the member(s) of Equity Shares of the above named

Company, hereby appoint:

1. Name: Address:

E-mail Id: signature: , or failing him/ her
2. Name: Address:

E-mail Id: signature: , or failing him/ her
3. Name: Address:

E-mail Id: signature: , or failing him/ her

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, the 30th day of September,
2021 at 11.00 A.M at its Registered Office at 35, Link Road, 2™ Floor, Lajpat Nagar-III, New
Delhi-110024 and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of such resolutions set out in the
Notice convening the meeting, as are indicated below:

PN N - T ; T
Ordinary Business: g For Against

1. | Adoption of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

)

Declaration of dividend on Preference Shares

Re-appointment of Mr. Samir Gupta, who retires by rotation

Lpd
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Re-appointment of Mr. Abhishek Gupta, who retires by rotation

L

Fixation of Remuneration of M/s. PRYD & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the F.Y. 2021-22

Special Business:

6. | Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor

Signed this day of ,2021.
Affix

Signature ot Shareholder: Revenue
Stamp of
Re.1/-

Signature of Proxy Holder(s):

o

tod

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.

This form of Proxy shall be signed by the member or his duly authorized attorney, or if the
member is a body corporate, it should be duly sealed and signed by an officer or an
attorney. The Proxy form which unstamped or inadequately stamped or where the stamp
has not been cancelled or is undated or which does not state the name of the Proxy shall
not be considered valid.

Proxy need not be a member of the company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of
the Companies Act, 2013, a person cannot act a proxy on behalf of members exceeding
fitty and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the company carrying Voting Rights may appoint a single person as proxy
for his entire shareholding and such person shall not act as a Proxy for another member.

The submission by a member of this form of Proxy will not preclude such member from

attending in person and voting at the meeting. If both member and proxy attend the
meeting, the proxy shall automatically revoked.

8
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

Folio No.* No. of Shares

DPID Client ID

Members or their Proxies are requested to present this Slip in accordance with the Specimen
Signatures registered with the Company, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, for admission.

Name of the attending Member / Proxy
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Wednesday, the Thursday, the 30th day of September, 2021 at 11.00 A.M. at the Registered
Office of the Company at 35, Link Road, 2™ F loor, Lajpat Nagar-III, New Delhi-110024.

Member’s Signatures Proxy’s Signatures

*Applicable for Members holding shares in Physical form.

9
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

~

The Members
Star Wire (India) Limited,

Dear Members,

Your directors are pleased to present their 58" Annual Board’s Report on the performance and
achievements of your company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2021

I

1.1.

1.3.

Financial Highlights

Though impacted by lockdown on account of COVID-19 more particularly during Q-1,
the company has been able to sail across its impact up to a significant extent and made a
resounding recovery backed by strong demand, in subsequent quarters to be able to post
the spectacular results ever in the history of company.

Revenues from operations & Operating Income for the year ended March 31, 2021 stood at
Rs.58760.46/- lakhs as against Rs. 57263.44/- lakhs in the previous year registering growth of
approximately 3% YOY in spite of impact of lockdown during Q-1.

Your company has been able to clock the YOY growth of 60% in EBIDTA
over the FY 20 levels. The EBIDTA for the vear is 22% as against 14% for
last year due to effect of new investments in cost savings and capacity
expansion during previous years.

Your Company is continuously engaged in up-gradation and modernization of Plant &
Machineries so as to achieve the process improvement and manufacture the quality products
with optimized cost.

The highlights of the Company’s performance are further mentioned as under:

The company has achieved best ever Profit Before Tax (PBT) of 86.73 Crs (14.76% on
sales) for the year FY 2020-21 registering a growth of 130% over PBT of Rs. 36.81
Crores(6.43% on sales) achieved during previous FY 2019-20;

Net Profit After Tax for the year is 11.06% (Rs. 64.99 Crs) as against 7.31% (Rs. 41.85
Crs) of the previous year FY 2019-20;

Your Company achieved the following results during FY 2020-21:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Profit before depreciation, Interest and 12740.15 8149.80
Tax

Less: Interest* , 2040.43 2758.08
Depreciation 2026.31 1711.17
Profit before tax 8673.41 3680.56
Less: Current Tax 1726.94 525.31
Deferred Tax 447.30 (1109.77)
Income Tax expense of earlier years - 79.84
Profit after tax 6499.17 4185.17
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Add: Balance b/f from previous year 29178.29 24993.11

Total 35677.46 29178.29

Less: Appropriations:

Proposed Dividend on:

Preference Shares 0.00 0.00
Equity Shares 0.00 0.00
Dividend Distribution Tax 0.00 0.00
Profit carried forward to Balance Sheet 35677.46 29178.29

*The Interest Amount includes Rs. 14.16 lacs/- towards Dividend on Redeemable Preference Shares
& Taxes thereon.

% The dedicated diagnostic laboratory of the company which performs testing like Chemical,
Mechanical & Metallurgical Testing of Steel and Alloys of Aluminium, Copper, Zine, Lead, Tin,
Nickel, Titanium etc along with various Non Destructive Testing (NDT) like Ultrasonic Testing
(UT), Radiography, Dye Penetrations (DP) Test, MPI etc., Failure Analysis and Corrosion Test of
Metals &Alloys has also performed reasonably well during the year clocking receipts of INR 3.30
Crores as against INR 2.95 Crores for FY2019-20 in-spite of pandemic effect. The figures in table
above are inclusive of such incomes from diagnostic center.

2. Future Outlook & Expansion:

2.1. Your company is continuously working upon to evolve the best production techniques and
processes so as to improve production efficiency and optimize cost by efficient utilization of
resources.

2.2. The R & D team of your company is further working upon to develop new grades of steel in
valve steel segment in line with the requirement of OEM customers. The company aims to tap
the burgeoning demand in valve steel segment with expansion of its existing manufacturing set
up.It is expected to achieve significant volume growth as well as realization in Valve steel
segment with said initiatives.

2.3. Your company expects to receive further benefits during upcoming year on account of the

investments in cost saving and capacity expansions as completed in earlier years. This should
further contribute to sustain/ increase the operational margin for next financial year onwards and
strengthen our competitive positioning

2.4. The project for supply and installation of Vacuum Induction Machine(VIM) is on its
scheduled track and will help company to produce super-alloys/titanium based material for
Defense, Aerospace and Automotive sectors,

The project for shifting of foundry operations to Plant-11 with addition of modern equipment will
provide larger space to cast larger dia castings and reduce the costs. The project is likely to be
completed by end of FY 21-22.

!Q
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The efforts of company on development of high performance materials to be used for application
in marine, aerospace and defense sectors are continuing.

With a view to expand existing business and enter into new areas of business. your company has
tied up with experts in overseas countries to provide opportunities for new product development
and customers.

2.8. Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhivan led by Government of India is giving significant push to
self reliance and local production which is most likely will favorably impact the
operations of company.

2.9. Your Company would also wish to increase the hot working capacity and capability by
installing the 1060mm 2 Hi Reversing Mill which was purchased from Tata Corus, U.K.
An increase in hot working capacity & capability wiil give a direct boost to
the Company’s Turnover as most of the special products/ future products require hot
working of large section Ingots/ blooms, and the Management now realizes that lack of
such facilities is a major constraint in achieving a quantum jump in sales.

Dividend & Transfer to General Reserve
Your Directors, this vear also, have decided not to recommend dividend to equity shareholders, for
the long term growth objectives of the Company which are to be met by internal cash accruals.
However, your Directors are pleased to recommend 4% dividend to the Preference Shareholders,
which is payable on obtaining Share Holders approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
During the year no amount has been transferred to General Reserve by the Company.

Credit Rating:

Credit rating of company has been reaffirmed at CRISIL “A” with outlook.

Impact of Business due to COVID-19

Financial Year 2020-21

post resumption and by following social distancing and sanitization. company has ramped up fast
to reach to pre-covid level of operations from July.20 onwards and achieved the best ever financial
performance in terms of improved EBIDTA, PBT and PAT.

The production activities were totally halted for first 45 days in first quarter of FY 21. However,

Debt Obligations

With emphasis on collection of receivables and better working capital management, company has
been able to meet all its debt obligations without opting for any moratortum as provided by RBI*
and is confident of maintaining same moving forward. In fact the company pre-paid some of its
term loan instalments due during the vear and reduce the interest cost.

Deposits

During the vear under review your Company has not accepted any deposits during the vear, no
deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year and there was no default in
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repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year within the meaning of Section
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014.

8. Subsidiary/Associate Company

As on March 31, 2021, the Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate Company.

9. Change in the Nature of Business:

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during financial year ended March
31,2021

i{0. Directors

10.1 As per the Companies Act, 2013 the provisions in respect of retirement of directors by rotation
will not be applicable to Independent Directors, in view of this, no independent director is
considered to be retiring by rotation but all other directors except Managing Director as per AOA
of the company, will be retiring by rotation accordingly , one third among all other directors
namely Mr. Samir Gupta (DIN 00054308) and Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN 00054 145), Directors
are liable to retire by rotation, are retiring at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

10.2 Independent Directors

Mr. Pankaj Jain and Mr. Girish Mohan Ganeriwala, Independent Director holds the office
for the term of five years ending on 26.09.2022. They are not liable to retire by rotation
in terms of Section 149(13) of the Act.

The Independent Directors of the Company have declared that they meet the criteria of
Independence in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions
of independence as specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and are
independent of the management.

10.3 Governance Guidelines:

The Board of the Company has adopted Governance Guidelines on Board Effectiveness.
The Guidelines cover aspects related to composition and role of the Board. Chairman and
Directors, Board diversity. definition of independent Director Term, retirement age and
Committees of the Board. It also covers aspects relating to nomination, appointment,
induction and development of Directors, Director Remuneration. Code of Conduct, Board
Effectiveness Review and Mandates of Board Committees.

10.4 Procedure for Nomination and Appointment of Directors:

The Nomination Remuneration Committee is responsible for developing competency
requirements for the Board based on the industry and strategy ot the Company. The Board
composition analysis reflects in-depth understanding of the Company. including its
strategies, environment, operations, and financial condition and compliance requirements.
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The Nomination Remuneration Committee conducts a gap analysis to refresh the Board on
a periodic basis, including each time a Director’s appointment or re-appointment is
required. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing the profiles of potential
candidate’s vis-a-vis the required competencies and meeting potential candidates, prior to
making recommendations of their nomination to the Board. At the time of appointment,
specific requirements for the position, including expert knowledge expected, is
communicated to the appointee.

10.5 Declaration and meeting of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company have declared that they meet the criteria of
Independence in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that there is no change
in their status of Independence. A separate meeting of Independent Directors in line with the
statutory provisions was held on 28.07.2020, wherein all Independent Directors were present. The
Independent Directors in the meeting:

. Reviewed the performance of non-independent Directors including Managing Director &
CEO and the Board as a whole;

II.  Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company’s
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform its duties.

10.6 Board Evaluation:

i) Performance Evaluation of the Independent Directors and Other Individual Directors:

The Company has framed a policy for Appointment of Directors and Senior Management and
Evaluation of Directors® Performance (“Board Evaluation Policy”). The said policy sets out
criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, other Non- Executive Directors and
the Executive Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act. the Board carries out the performance evaluation of all the
Directors (including Independent Directors) on the basis of recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and the criteria mentioned in the Board Evaluation Policy. The
Board decided that the performance evaluation of Directors should be done by the entire Board
of Directors excluding the Director being evaluated and unanimously agreed on the following
assessment criteria for evaluation of Directors” performance:

a. Attendance and active participation in the Meetings:

b. Bringing one’s own experience to bear on the items for discussion:
¢. Governance — 1) Awareness ii) Observance; and

d. Value addition to the business aspects of the Company.

it} Performance Evaluation of Executive Director:
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The performance of the Managing Director and/or CEO is evaluated on the basis of achievement
of performance targets/ criteria given to him by the Board from time to time.

iii) Performance Evaluation by the Board of its own performance and its Committees:

The performance of the Board is evaluated by the Board in the overall context of by the Board of
the Company’s principle and values, philosophy and mission statement, strategic and business
plans and demonstrating this through its action on important matters, the effectiveness of the
Board and the respective Committees in providing guidance to the management of the Company
and keeping them informed, open communication, the constructive participation of members and
prompt decision making, level of attendance in the Board meetings, constructive participation in
the discussion on the Agenda items, monitoring cash flow, profitability, income & expenses,
productivity & other financial indicators, so as to ensure that the Company achieves its planned
results, effective discharge of the functions and roles of the Board etc. The performance of the
Committees is evaluated by the members of the respective Committees on the basis of the
Committee effectively performing the responsibility as outlined in its Charter, Committee
meetings held at appropriate frequency, length of them meetings being appropriate, open
communication & constructive participation of members and prompt decision-making efc.

iv)  Meetings of the Board

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and
strategy apart from other Board business. The Board / Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled and
a tentative annual calendar of the Board and Committee Meetings is circulated to the Directors
well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful participation in
the meetings. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s approval is
taken by passing resolutions by circulation. as permitted by law. which is noted and confirmed in
the subsequent Board meeting. During the year. 07 meetings of the Board of Directors were held
on 16.05.2020, 13.06.2020, 04.09.2020, 21.09.2020, 03.11.2020, 01.02.2021, 22.03.2021.

11. Committees of the Board of Directors

Your Company has duly constituted the Committees required under the Act read with
applicable Rules made under.

The Board has constituted the following Committees:
i) Audit Committee
i) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

iii) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

11,1 Audit Committee:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted
Audit Committee. As on 31% March, 2021, the Audit Committee comprised the following
Directors:

| Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Chairperson
2. Mr. Pankaj Jain, Member (Independent Director)
3 Mr. Girish Mohan Ganeriwala, Member (Independent Director)
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The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.
a.  Meetings of Audit Committee

Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year ended on 317 March, 2021 on 11.05.2020,
10.08.2020, 02.11.2020 and on 20.01.2021 and the gap between two meetings was not more than
one hundred twenty days.

The quorum for the Audit Committee meetings is either two members or one third of the members
of the Audit Committee whichever is greater, but there should be a minimum of two independent
members present.

b. Powers of Audit Committee
The powers of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference

. To seek information on and from any employee.

. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
. To protect whistle blowers.

. To consider other matters as referred by the Board.

J Ld B —
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¢.  Role of Audit Committee
The Role of the Audit Committee includes the following:

1. Oversight of our Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommendation to the Board regarding fixation of audit fee to be paid to statutory auditors
under the Companies Act and approval for payment with respect to any other services
rendered by the statutory auditors.

3. Reviewing. with the management, the annual Financial statements and Auditors’ Report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

i.  Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included
in the Board’s report in terms of Clause (¢) of Sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

ii.  Changes. if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

iii.  Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management.

iv.  Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit findings.

v.  Compliance with requirements relating to Financial Statements.

vi.  Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions.

vii.,  Qualifications in the draft Audit Report.
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Reviewing/examine, with the management, the quarterly Financial Statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the end use/ utilization of proceeds of a public
or rights issue & related matters and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take
up steps in this matter.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy
of the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and / or auditors any significant findings and follow up there
on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors/auditors/agencies
into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems
of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture

holders. shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors.

. To review / oversee the functioning of vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower mechanism of

Company:

To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the Comptroller & Auditor General
audit.

. Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal auditor

and the Board.

. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties:

Review all related party transactions in the Company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee
may designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related party transactions;

7. Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness

of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

. Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:

The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system controls and
security; and

Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor,
together with the management responses.

fa
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Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent
auditor:

. Significant findings during the year. including the status of previous audit recommendations;

and

Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on  the scope of
activities or access to required information.

Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.
23. Evaluation of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems,

. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee under the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time.

Review of information by Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

t
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Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.
Statement of significant related party transactions submitted by management.
Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.
Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor.

All the recommendations of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

11.2

The

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Company had constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee in line with the

requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act. 2013. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of directors and recommends to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for
the Directors, Key managerial Personnel and other employees. The brief terms of the policy framed

7
/

by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(4) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder are as follows:

a)

The Committee shall ensure formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications. positive
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy. relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.
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b) The committee shall ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company
successfully;

¢) The committee shall also ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

d) The committee shall also ensure that the remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel
and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its
goals.

The Key Objectives of the Committee are:
I. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications. positive attributes and

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

b

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board:

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

ot

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down. and recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal. The Company shall disclose the remuneration policy and
the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report.

5. Assessing and reviewing the performance of Senior/ Top Management Employees of the
Company and recommend their remuneration package as per Policy of the Company after
considering the employment scenario, remuneration package of the industry and
remuneration package of the managerial talent of other industries.

During the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 three meetings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were held on 11.05.2020, 10.08.2020 and on 20.01.2021. The
composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended
by the Directors is as under:

Name of Director Category Designation
i.] Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Non-Executive Chairperson
Director
2. | Mr. Pankaj Jain Non-Executive Member
independent Director
3. Mr. Girish Mohan Ganeriwala Non-Executive Member
Independent Director

Remuneration Policy of the Company

The Company's remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual
employees and the Company. Company’s Compensation philosophy is to align Directors and
compensation with our business objectives, so that compensation is used as a strategic tool that
helps us recruit, motivate and retain highly talented individuals who are committed to our core
values
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We believe that our compensation programs are integral to achieving our goals. Through its
compensation program, the Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high
performance workforce. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance of the
Company.

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary to its Managing Director. Whole Time Directors
and other Directors. Increments are decided by the Compensation Committee within the salary
scale approved by the Board and Shareholders. Executive Directors are not entitled to sitting
fees for attending meeting of directors.

11.3 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors have
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. A brief outline of the Company’s
CSR policy. including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the weblink to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

In alignment with the “Vision™ of the Company, Star Wire (India) Limited, through its CSR
initiatives, will continue to enhance value creation in the society and in the community in which it
operates, through its services, conduct & initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the
society and community, in fulfillment of its role as a Socially Responsible Corporate, with
environmental concern.

The policy encompasses the Company’s philosophy, its responsibility as a corporate citizen and
lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs for welfare &
sustainable development of the community at large. The policy shall apply to all CSR initiatives
and activities taken up by the Company, for the benefit of different segments of the society,
specifically the old Age, deprived. under privileged and differently abled persons.

The composition of the CSR Committee is as under:-
Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Chairperson,

Mr. Pankaj Jain (member) and
Mr. Abhishek Gupta (member).

[ O

During the year ended on 31" March, 2021 the Committee met 4 time on 11.05.2020., 10.08.2020.
02.11.2020 and on 20.01.2021.

The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of:

e formulating and recommending to the Board. a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR
Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company.

e Monitoring the implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the
amount to be spent on CSR activities.

e Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of
Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments Under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020-21

Your company has not directly or indirectly:
a) given any loan to any person or other body corporate other than usual advances.

b) givenany guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate
or person and

¢) acquired by way of subscription purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body
corporate.

Your company has not accepted deposits from public as envisaged under Sections 73 to 76 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.

13. Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

Information required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, with respect to conservation of energy. technology absorption and foreign
exchange earnings/outgo is included in Annexure A.

14. Related Party Transactions

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were in the Ordinary Course of
Business and at Arm’s Length pricing basis. The Audit Committee granted omnibus approval for
the transactions (which are repetitive in nature) and the same was reviewed by the Audit

Committee.

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year
2019-20 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required
under IND AS-24 have been made in Note 31.9 of the Notes to the financial statements. Detail of
Related Party Transactions has been given under Form AOC-2 attached herewith as Annexure -B

to this Report.

15.  Extract of Annual Return

An extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as on March 31. 2021 is available on company’s
website. (web-link: htip:/ www starwire.in‘assets/docs/AnnualReturn.pdf)

16. Risk Management Policy
Your Company has a robust Risk Management policy. The Company through a Steering Committee
oversees the Risk Management process including risk identification. impact assessment, effective
implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting.

17. Internal Control System

A strong internal control system is pervasive in the Company. The Company has documented a
robust and comprehensive internal control system for all the major processes to ensure reliability
of financial reporting.

18. Internal Control over Financial Reporting
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The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations.

During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operations were observed. The Company has policies and procedures in place for ensuring proper
and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of assets. the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company has a robust system for internal financial closure, certification mechanism for
certifying adherence to various accounting policies, accounting hygiene and accuracy of provisions
and other estimates.

Particulars of Employees and Related disclosures

Pursuant to Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names and other particulars of the employees
drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules are provided in the Annexure
—C forming part of the Annual Report.

Auditors
20.1. Statutory Auditor

M/s PRYD & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company having registration number (011626N) for the period of five years in the Annual General
Meeting held on September 27, 2017 till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting for the Financial
Year 2022 and the said appointment was subject to the ratification by members at every subsequent
Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, enforced on 7" May, 2018 by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every
annual General Meeting.

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial Statement of the Company forms part of this
Report. There has been no qualifications, reservation adverse remarks or disclaimers given by the by
the Auditors in their Report.

20.2. Cost Auditor

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules. 2014, as amended, the Cost Audit Records maintained by the Company is required to
be audited. The Board of Directors had, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed
M/s. S. Chander & Associates, (Regn. No: 100103) Cost Accountants, Delhi for conducting the cost
audit of the Company for Financial Year 2021-21.

As required under the Companies Act. 2013, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is
required to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly. resolution seeking ratification
for remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditors is included at Item No.06 of the Notice convening
Annual General Meeting.

20.3. Secretarial Auditor
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Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, your Company has engaged
the services of M/s. R K & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, Delhi to conduct the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

The Secretarial Audit Report (in Form MR-3) is attached as Annexure- D to this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.

The Company is compliant with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and approved by Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

18.4 Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors of vour Company has appointed Ms. Damini Mangla, Cost & Works
Accountant as Internal Auditor pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 to
carry internal audit.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Initiatives:

As the members are aware that vocational training i.e. sewing centers for girls and computer training
centers for all are already been opened by the company four years back and same are doing well.
Total number of trainees undergoing training are 80, 40 students in sewing classes and 40 students in
Computer classes as on date and total amount spent on this activity during the year is Rs.312177.90

The Company has also donated funds of Rs. 324600.00 to certain trusts.

Rs. 273020 were spent towards food items during Covid Pandemic falling under eradication of
hunger.

Total Average net profit of the Company during the three immediately preceding financial years for
CSR initiative comes around Rs.4499.68 Lacs for the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2021 and the
amount required to be spent during the year is Rs.89.99 Lacs.

Annual Report on CSR Activities is attached as Annexure-E. The CSR policy is available on
companys website. (web-link:http:/www starwire.in/CSRPolicy.pdf)

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of financial vear (March 31, 2021) and the date ot the Report September, 21, 2021}

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy
Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules. 2014 the Board of Directors had approved the Policy on Vigil
Mechanism/ Whistle Blower. This Policy inter-alia provides a direct access to the Chairman of the

Audit Committee.

Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee has been denied access to the Chairman
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of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the year.
Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on
Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013 &
the Rules there under for prevention and Redressal of Complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.
Further Company is committed to providing equal opportunities without regard to their race. caste,
sex. religion, color, nationality. disability etc. (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees) as
well as any women visiting the Company's premises or women service providers are covered under
this policy. All employees are treated with dignity with a view to maintain a work environment free
from Sexual harassment whether physical, verbal or psychological.

During Fiscal year 2021 there were no complaints received or pending for disposal.

Order by Court or Tribunal

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which would
impact the going concern status of the Company & its future operations.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Annual Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and
Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may
constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations.
Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3) (c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Directors of your Company state and confirm that:

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the FY 2020-21, the applicable Ind-AS accounting
standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

2

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the Company
for year ended on that date:

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safe guarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

fard

4. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis:

The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively: and

W

6. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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28. Compliance with Secretarial Standard

The Company has complied with the secretarial standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2).
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‘Annexure A’ to Directors’ Report

Particulars of conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange

(A) Conservation of Energy

Your company is working very closely with Petroleum Conservation Research Association
(PCRA), New Delhi to take various measures to control the energy consumptions in re-rolling
furnaces. heat treatment furnaces, Mass flow system and PID controller are being put to bring down
the energy consumption. Regular audits are being undertaken by PCRA and effective measures are
being taken from time to time to conserve the energy.

The details of Power and fuel consumption:-

S. No. | Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Current Year Previous Year
1. Electricity:
(a) Purchased:
Units Purchased (KVAH) 84739372 91103323
Total Cost (Rs) 62,01,58,915 63,70,18,213
Rate/unit 7.32 6.99

(b) Own Generation —
Through generators:

Units Produced 3902411 2290067
Units/litter of fuel oil 3.93 3.84
Cost (Rs)/unit 9.17 9.48

Purchased Fuels consumed:

2. Diesel:
Quantity (Itrs) 31153 205014
Total Cost 22,61,951 1,34,30,589
Average Rate per liter 72.61 65.51
3. Furnace Oil:
Quantity (ltrs) 961127 2428805
Total Cost 3,35,16,833 8.48,19,099
Average Rate per liter 34.87 3492
4. Gas (PNG):
Quantity (MMBTU) 266766.31 21744953
Total cost 239017963 220955353

Average rate per MMBTU 895.98 1016.12
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Particulars Standards (If | 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
any) Current Year Previous Year | Previous
Year
Iron & Steel Products Not Specific 2453 Units per | 2412 Units | 2542 Units
MT of Scrap|per MT of per MT of
Consumed Scrap Scrap
Consumed Consumed

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

I.

3.

The Company has been able to successfully absorbed technology transferred from DMRL &
NMRL (DRDO Labs) for special material used by Indian Navy in ship building program and
fruitful results of this technology absorption are benefitting the company by good order book from

Navy Ship Builders.

The Company is working with ARDE, Pune for development of Air Drooping Bomb, which is in
advance stage of manufacturing. This will benefit the Company as well as the Country as an Import

substitution.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years):

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

NIL

The Company has continued to maintain focus and avail of export opportunities based on economic
considerations. During the year, the Company has exports (FOB value) worth Rs.23469.36 Lakhs
against Rs.21751.80 Lakhs in the previous year. The total inflow in this year is Rs.21568.46 Lakhs
against Rs.22737.90 Lakhs in the previous year. while total outflow in this year is Rs.8199.75 Lakhs
against Rs.8487.61 Lakhs in the previous year.
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‘Annexure B’ to Directors’ Report

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NIL
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Unsecured loan from related parties: NIL

¢) Duration of the contracts / arrngements/transactions: NIL

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value,
if any: NIL

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: NIL
) Date(s) of approval by the Board: NIL
g) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188: N.A

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:
1. a)Name of the related party and nature of relationship:

Mr. S.R. Gupta, Mr. M.K. Gupta, Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Mr. Samir Gupta, Mrs. Mahima Gupta
& Mr, Abhishek Gupta, Directors & their Relatives

b) Nature of transaction: Financial Arrangement in the form of Unsecured Loan from related
parties i.e. unsecured Loan

¢) Duration of transaction: coincidental with Bank Loan Agreements

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: unsecured loan is repayable on
demand and carries interest @ 8.35% p.a., monetary value of the transaction is as following:

M.K.Gupta: Director Remuneration Rs.61.50.000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.5,89.803/-

Samir Gupta: Director Remuneration Rs.54,30,000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.31,54,737/-

Abhishek Gupta: Director Remuneration Rs.27.30.000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.23,76.594/-
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Sita Ram Gupta: Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.1,33,133/-

Rekha Gupta: Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.28,74.052/-
Director Sitting Fee Rs.7,000/-

Mahima Gupta Director Sitting Fee Rs.7,000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.3.04,390/-

¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2020

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A.

2. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Star Wire (India) Engineering Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Machining of castings

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value,
Rs. 6,19,39,268/- (Machining Charges)
Rs.10,53.57.910/-  (Sale of Goods)
Rs.68.22.332/- (Interest on Advances)

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2020

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: 7,79.41,007/-
3. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Abhishek Gupta
b) Nature of transaction: leasing of immovable property

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value,
If any: Annual Rent of Rs.9, 60,000/~ for Registered Office of the Company

¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on 16.05.2020

£y Amount paid as advances. if any: NIL

4. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Sita Ram Mohinder Kumar Gupta HUF
h) Nature of transaction: leasing of immovable property
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value,
if any: Annual Rent of Rs.9.00.000/- for godown of the Company

4. Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on 16.05.2020

) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
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5. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Supreme Commercial Enterprises Ltd.
b) Nature of transaction: Human Resource services
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.318,50,226/- (Human Resource
services) Rs.1.20,000/- (Rent for premises used for sheds/manufacturing facility of the
Company)

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on 16.05.2020

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

6. a)Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Juhi Leasing & Finance Ltd.
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.2,04,000/-
¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2020
) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

7. a)Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Saraswati Charitable Trust
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1,08.000/-
e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2020
) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
8. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Shree Radha Krishna Charitable Trust
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1.86,000/-

¢) Date of approval by the Board. if any: 16.05.2020
) Amount paid as advances, if any: NiL




Il

Lad

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020-21

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Brijeshwari Dharmarth Sansthan
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.2,20,000/-

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2020
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mahawar Charitable Trust

b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1.74,400/-

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2020
) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Interglobal Steels Private Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.4,00,000/-

¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2020
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Kuber Dharmarth Sansthan

b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.9800/-
¢) Date of approval by the Board. if any: 16.05.2020

) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mahawar Dharmarth Sansthan

b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
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e) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1,14,0600/-

f) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2020
g} Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

14. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Supersigma Alloys & Forggings Private

Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Purchase
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.709.35,000/~(Purchase of Goods)

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2620
) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Nipin Steel Private Limited

b) Nature of transaction: Interest on Unsecured Loan
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.25,278/- (Interest on Unsecured
Loan)

¢) Date of approval by the Board. if any: 16.05.2020

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Surendra Brothers Engineers Private
Limited
b) Nature of transaction: leasing of immovable property

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Annual Rent of Rs.96,000/- for
business purpose of the Company

e} Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on 16.05.2020

) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

ay Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Sun Source Leafin Private Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Interest on Unsecured Loan

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive
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d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.4.81,409/- (Interest on Unsecured
Loan)

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 16.05.2020

) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Mohinder Kumar Gupta) {Samir Gupta)
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN-00054110 DIN-00054308
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: 28.08.2021 Date: 28.08.2021
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Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 (2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014

Mr. 8.8. Virdi (COO & CEO)*

Designation | Remunerati | Nature  of | Qualificatio | Date of | Age/ Last % of | Whether
on Received | employment | n & | commence | DOB employment | equity such
Experience | ment  of shares employee s
employme held relative  of
nt any Director
or manager
Chief 79,99.698.00 | Permanent B.Tech. 12-08-2013 10 years in | Nil No
Operating {(Met.}, Jindal
Officer M.B.A stainless
Steel
Exp. - 37 3 wvears in
Years Star Wire
3 vears in
Dansteel
Engg
| year in Star
Wire
I vear in
Steel  Stripl
year in W.M.
Forge

7 years in
Oswal Steel
3 vear in
H.M.T

I vear in
Escorts Ltd
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FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

35, LINK ROAD, ZND FLOOR,

LAJPAT NAGAR-III NEW DELHI-110024

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: U27109DL1963PLC117600 (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, complied with statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has proper Board processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.

1. 1 have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2021 according to the provisions of:

(i} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made
there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there
under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 {SEBI Act}:-



a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the
company during the audit period);

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992 (Not applicable to the company during the audit
period);

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not
applicable to the company during the audit period);

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with clients;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the company during the audit
period); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the company during the audit
period);

(vi) The Other Laws applicable specifically to the Company are:

a) E-waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 2011.

b) Other Labour Laws & Social Security Laws.
¢) Environmental Laws

d) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013

2. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

3. During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the
Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines mentioned above.

4.1 further report that:

(a) Board is having the required balance of Rotational, Non-Rotational, Independent and
Women Director and the composition of Board is as per provisions of the Act on or
before 31/03/2021.



(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through unanimously, and therefore, dissenting
members’ views are not required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

5. I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

6. | further report that during the audit period there has not been any such activity having
a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws rules,
regulations, guidelines etc.

This report be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-‘A’ and
forms an integral part of this report.

For RK & ASSCOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)
Place: New Delhi N o ot ot 26
. pseufonymx}éc49b54ece2ddc72257af55e69d7cda‘ba445i53b96¢
Date: 26 / 08 / 2021 R A KE S H K U M A R czcmd:)es9ifizaf?§:§a2 :c;sta!(o(:es.e;?‘(:(;ig s;;;e;:b,mwe
29601 75820057 deebeld, cn=RAKESH KUMAR
Date: 2621.08.26 15:59:31 +05°30°
CS Rakesh Kumar

(M. No.: FCS 7695, CoP No.: 8553)
UDIN: FO07695C000834642
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To,

The Members of

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

35, LINK ROAD, 2ND FLOOR, ;
LAJPAT NAGAR-III NEW DELHI-110024

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on my audit.

2. T have followed the audit practices and processes as are appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I
believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

7. During the course of my examination of the books and records of the Company, that has
been carried out in accordance with generally accepted practices in India, I have neither
come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, nor the Company has noticed
and reported any such case during the year and accordingly the Company has not
informed me of any such case.

For RK & ASSOCIATES

(Company Secretaries)
Ofgitally signad by RAKESH KUMAR

Place: New Delhi RAKESH KUMAR st e o acom,
Date: 26/08/2021 ey s R
CS Rakesh Kumar
(M. No.: FCS 7695, CoP No.: 8553)
UDIN: F007695C000834642
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‘Annexure E’ to Directors’ Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or

programs,

The Company’s CSR policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company under the web-link:

http://www starwire.in/CSRPolicy.pdf

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

The composition of the CSR Committee is as under:
Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Chairperson

Mr. Pankaj Jain, Member

Mr. Abhishek Gupta, Member

Mrs, Rekha Sharma, Secretary
The Committee met 4 (four Times) during the year under review.

3. Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years

Average net profit: Rs.44,99.67,618/-

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the average net profit of the last three financial years)

The Company during the financial year 2020-21 is required to spend Rs.89.99,352/- towards

CSR.
Particulars Amount
Average net profit for last three financial vears 44.99.67,618
Prescribed CSR expenditure 2% of Average net profit for last
three financial years
Amount CSR to be spent for financial year 89,99.352
Amount CSR spent for financial year 11,09.797.00
Amount spent in local area 11.09,797.00
Amount unspent CSR 237.58,176.35 **
i Particulars Amount
Opening Balance 158,38,971.35
(+) Provision for the F.Y 2020-21 89,99,352.00
(+) Reversal of P.Y Expenses 29.650.00
{-) Expenditure made during F.Y 2020-21 11.09,797.00
Closing Amount to be spent 237,38,176.35




Y

5.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
Total amount spent for the year: Rs.1109797.00/-
Amount unspent. if any: Rs.237.58.176.35 /-
Manner in which amount spent/provisioned during the financial year is detailed below:

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020-21

women, elderly. and the
differently abled and livelihood
enhancement

projects: (iii) promoting gender
equality. empowering women.
setting up homes and hostels for
women and

orphans; setting up old age
homes. day care centres and
such other facilities for senior
citizens and

measures for reducing

Amount
spent
Amount Spent Cumulative directly
S.NO| CSR Project or Sector in which the project is . Expenditure upto lor
I I . on the Project .
5 activity identified ] covered the reporting through
Or programme . .
period implemen
ting
Agency
Amount of Rs.
Covered under item (iii) in 1,93,60.,000/
schedule VII. Promoting Gender spent by way of
equality, empowering women, donation of a Through a
| Old Age setting up homes and hostels for NIL piece of land for | Implemen
Home/Dharmshala | women and orphans, setting up setting up Old ting
old age homes, day care centres Age Home/ Agency
and such other facilities for Dharmshala
senior citizens.
Covered under item (1),
eradicating hunger, poverty and
malnutrition, promoting Rs. 2.73.020/-
preventive health care and
sanitation and (Directly)
making available safe drinking
water during Pandemic,
Donation to trusts covered for Rs. 3:24,5007%
providing activities under (Indirectly)
Schedule VII ’ .
Directly
~ . A and
Enhancement of (1) promoting education, throuzh
~ | Vocation skills including special education and Rs. : 5
2 . . = - implemen
among woman & employment enhancing vocation | gs. 3.12.177- 6580305.47 tin
children skills A &
especially among children, (Directly) fAgencies
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inequalities faced by socially
and economically backward
groups; promoting gender
equality, empowering women,
setting up homes and hostels for
women and orphans; setting up
old age homes, day care centres
and such other facilities for
senior citizens and

measures for reducing
inequalities faced by socially
and economically backward
groups;

Rs. 11,09,797.00 | Rs. 2,59.40.305.47

6. Reasons for not spending the prescribed CSR expenditures:

The company is already engaged in the activities covered under the provisions of CSR directly as well as
indirectly as in the past. To be specific the company has incurred Rs. 3,12,177.00/- during the vear on the
CSR activities directly towards enhancement of vocational skills for inhabitants residing near manutacturing
facilities in the following manner-

» Computer Training center for boys
»  Sewing Training center for girls in village

Further, during corona Pandemic company spent Rs. 2,73,020.00/- for distribution free food items and

clothes.

Further the company has also incurred Rs.5,42.600.00/- on the CSR activities indirectly by way of donating
funds to the recognized charitable trust as per details below:-

» ASSOCIATION FOR THE WELFARE OF HANDICAPPED (Regd.)
> Bharat Vikas Parishad Social Welfare Trust

> Educational -cum-VYocational Association for the Disabled (Regd.)

> NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR BLIND

» INDIAN RED CROSS SOCIETY

> Sewa Bharti

Furthermore, as informed company is in the process of setting up an OId Age Home/Dharamshala in the
Village- Chhainsa. a piece of land owned by the company has already been donated for the said purpose.
The construction work could not be started because necessary permissions/approvals have not vet been
granted by the concerned departments/Govt. bodies.

Construction work will be started as soon as the permissions are granted. and the fund tying unutilized
under CSR will be utilized.




]
STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020-21
7. Responsibility Statement :
It is hereby affirmed that the impiementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR
objectives and Policy of the Company.
Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.08.2021
Now e > Ro b hnaoppt®~
" (Mohinder Kumar Gupta) {Rekha Gupta)
; ‘ Managing Director Chairman CSR Committee

5 DIN-00054110 DIN-00054073
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PRYD & ASSOCIATES 4831, Govind Lane, Ist Floor
Chartered Accountants 24 Ansari Road, Darya Ganj
New Delhi-110002
PHONE: (011)23258183
P M Mittal
B.Com, FCA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Star Wire (India) Limited

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Star Wire (India) Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Profit and
Loss Statement (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
statement of change in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation
and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows 'agdaé%
change in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles genggally g

accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified DL
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Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statemnents as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the opera%
%
)
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effectiveness of such controls.
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« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease (0 continue as a
going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our atidits

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been K€p
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books
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C. The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Statement (including other

comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Change in

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014,
as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 'and according
to the explanations given to us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31,
2021 on its financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements as referred
to in Note 31 to the Standalone Financial Statements;

(i)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

(iti) There was no fund which required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

4. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section
197(16):
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16)
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For PRYD & Associates

Place: New Delhi \ % o
Dated: 21 July 2021 (P.M. Mittg
Membership Number: 094

Partner
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“ANNEXURE A” TQ INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 3 1% March 2021, we report that:
1. Inrespect of its Fixed Assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable,
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its fixed assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

¢)  As per the information and explanations provided to us, title deeds of immovable
properties included in Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

2. In our opinion, the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals and as explained to us no material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification.

3. As informed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Act. Accordingly clauses 3(iii) (a, b & ¢) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

4. 1In our opinion and according to the information & the explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments and provided guarantees and
securities under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) from the public.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

6. The Company has maintained proper cost records as specified by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to the
manufacturing activities, and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed
cost records have been made and maintained.

7. Inrespect of statutory dues:
a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ou
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in A!?;
books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Providdfiagy, .
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, DulgRf 5/7
custom, Value added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have bd@immntis




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
regularly deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate
authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount
payable in respect of aforesaid dues were in arrears, as at March 31, 2021 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information & explanations given to us therc are certain disputed
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of disputed matters
pending before appropriate authorities are as under:

Sr Name of | Nature of the| Amou Period to| Forum where
No. | the statute | Dues nt (Rs. | which the | dispute is
in amount pending
Lacs) relates
1. Haryana [.ocal Area| 896.44 | Various years | Hon’ble
VAT Act Development (66.84) | from 2004-05} Supreme Court
Tax (LADT) to 2017-18
2. Income Demand on 69.02 various years | Assstt. / CIT,
Tax  Act,| additions & | (69.02) | from 2002-03 | CIT(A), ITAT
1961 Interest to 2008-09
3. Central Excise Duty 31.09 various years | With various
Excise Act, (31.09) | from 1988-89 | appellate
1944 to 2014-15 authorities &
Hon’ble
Supreme Court
4. Custom Custom duty | 192.13 | 2006-07 Dy
Act, 1962 against (177.0 Commissioner
Advance 0)
License
Total Rs 1188.68 Lacs (Rs 343.95 Lacs)
¢) According to the information & explanations given to us there are no amounts
which are required to be transferred to the investor education and protection fund
in accordance with the relevant provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules thereunder.
8. Based on our verification and according to the information & explanations given by
the management, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to its banks.
9. In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which the loans
were raised.
10. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and

fair view of the Financial Statements and According to the information and

explanations provided by the management, we have neither come across any instance
of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have wedsetfs
informed of such case by the Management.




11.

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 21 July 2021

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of
Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

Tn our opinjon and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company’s transactions with its related party are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with him as referred to Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
and hence reporting under clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations provided to us, the
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-TA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934

For PRYD & Associates
Chartered Accountants




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

“ANNEXURE B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure B referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 3 15t March 2021, we report that:

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Star Wire
(India) Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material mig§
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

gatgte




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A corpany’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For PRYD & Associates

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 21 July 2021 (P .M NB

Partner



STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MAR 2021

(Rs in Lakhs}
. As at As at
Particulars Notes 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 1 45666.05 46427.85
Capital Work-in-Progress 1 4071.10 2487.23
intangible assets under development 1 0.00 335.06
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 2 131.43 130.04
(i) L.oans 3 1049.45 1068.55
(iii} Others 4 121.41 111.29
Other non-current assets 5 1266.44 172.70
Total Non-Current Assets 52305.88 50732.72
Current assets
Inventories 6 22835.76 17869.26
Financial Assels
(i Trade receivables 7 21121.94 19080.99
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 68.87 149.57
{iii} Bank balances other than (i) above 9 556.29 354.41
{iv) Loans 10 41.30 47.15
{v) Others 11 3020.14 943.63
Other current assets 12 1950.79 1291.15
Total Current Assets 49595.09 39736.16
Total Assets 101900.96 90468.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 13 2790.48 2790.48
Other Equity 14 43967.75 37473.98
Total Equity 46758.23 40264.46
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 15 15324.33 16054.78
Provisions 16 814.91 732.90
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 17 4813.04 4367.56
Other non-current liabilities 18 764.79 791.19
Total Non-Current Liabilities 21717.06 21946.43
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 19 18891.52 17619.52
(i) Trade payables 20 7919.79 4596.76
{iiiy Other financial fiabilities 21 4554 42 4097.68
Other current liabilities 22 1652.96 1541.31
Provistons 23 406.98 402.72
Total Current Liabilities 33425.87 28258.08
Total Liabilities 55142.73 50204.43
Total Equity and Liabilities 101900.96 90468.88
Significant Accounting Policies
See accompaying notes fo the Financial Statements /T 13

As per our Report of even date:

For PRYD & Associates
Chartefed Accountants
Regislration No.: 011628N

(CA P. M. Mittal)
Pariner
Membership No.: 094667
Place: New Delhi

Date: July 21, 2021

(Subasi’Singh Virdi)
Executive Director

(Binad Kumar Mishra)
Chief Finance Officer

4y

{Rekha Sharma)}
Jt.GM Legal & Company Secretary
M No: FCS 6428

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-

\ -
O

{Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
Managing Director
DIN - 00054110

p\ Qw_ Q__ R

(Samir Gupta}
Whole Time Director
DIN - 00054308



STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & L.OSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAR,2021

(Rs in Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Notes ended ended
March-21 March-20
INCOME
I. Revenue from operations 24 57146.51 55882.80
Il. Operating Income 25.a 1613.94 1380.64
Il Non Operaling income 25b 672.97 217.36
IV Total Revenue (I+Ii+11) 59433.42 57480.80
V Expenses
Cost of material consumed 28 19612.28 19884.74
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 27 (1883.08) (1812.42)
and Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefits expense 28 3908.41 4803.36
Financial Costs 29 2040.43 2758.08
Depreciation and amortization expense 2026.30846 171117
Other expenses
- Manufacturing expenses 30.a 21746.65 23178.90
- Administrative Expenses 30.b 1897.41 2105.20
- Selling & Distribution Expenses 30.c 1411.60 1171.23
VI Total expenses 50760.01 53800.25
VIl Profitf {Loss) before exceptional ltems and tax (IV-VI} 8673.41 3680.56
Vil Exceptional items 0.00 0.00
X Profit/ (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (VI+VII) 8673.41 3680.56
X Extraordinary ltems 0.00 0.00
Xl Profit /{Loss) before tax {IX+X) 8673.41 3680.56
Xl Tax expense:
- Current Tax 17 1726.94 525.31
- Deferred Tax 17 447.30 {1108.77)
- [ncome Tax Expenses of Previous F.Y. 0.00 79.84
XHl Profit/ {Loss) for the year {XI-XIl} 6499.17 4,185.17
XIV Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss (7.2%) (78.10)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss 1.82 19.66
XV Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 6493.77 4126.73
Earning Per Equity Share of face value of ¥ 1 each;
- Basic: (Amount in Rs.} 2.33 1.50
- Diluted: {Amount in Rs.) 2.33 1.50
-Weighted average number of Equity Shares 279047500 279047500

Significant Acceunting Policies
See accompaying notes to the Financial Statemenis

Tto 3

As per our Report of even date: { 2 ’
(Subash Singh Virdi)
Executive Director

Bolodr

{Binod Kumar Mishra)
Chief Finance Officer

For PRYD & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No.;
g

e

Membership No.: 094667
Place: New Delhi
Date: July 21, 2021

(Rekha-bharma)

M No: FCS 6428

JLGM Legal & Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
I S e

{Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
Managing Director
DIN - 00054110

{Samir Gupta)
Whole Time Director
DiIN - 00054308



STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st MARCH,2021

Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 011626N

Partner

Membership No.: 094667
Place: New Delhi

Date: July 21, 2021

Executive Director

(Binod Kumar Mishra)
Chief Finance Officer

4

{(Rekha Sharma)

Jt.GM Legal & Company Secretary

M No: FCS 6428

(Rs in Lakhs)
A. Equity Share Capital
Balance at the beginning Change in Equity Balance at the end
of the reporting period Share Capital during the of the reporting period
i.e. 1st April, 2020 year 2020-21 i.e. 31st March, 2021
2790.48 0.00 2790.48
B. Other Equity
Bba;a?:;:t t:f Balance at the
9 the g Total Transfer to/ end
reportin Comprehensive {from) On Employee of the
perio dg Income for the Retained Stock Options reporting
P . Year Earnings peried i.e.31st
i.e.1st April, March. 2021
2020 !
As at 31st March, 2020
Share Application Money
Pending Allotment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Reserves and Surplus
Capital Reserve 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00
Securities Premium Reserve 7224 .88 0.00 0.00 0.00 722488
General Reserve 475.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 475.83
Retained Earnings 29178.29 6480.17 0.00 0.00 35677.46
Other Comprehensive Income (72.43) (5.40) 0.00 0.00 {77.83)
Revaluation Reserves 617.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 617.42
Total 37473.98 6493.77 0.00 0.00 43967.75
As per our Report of even date: For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
. P
. For PRYD & Associates (Subash Singh Virdi) p &H

{(Mohinder Kumar Gupta)

=,

Managing Director
DIN - 00054110

7

{Samir Gupta)
Whole Time Director
DIN - 00054308




{Rs in Lahs)

, . For the Year anded Far the Year ended
Particulars
March-21 March-20
Cash Flow Statement:
A Cash flow from operating activities:
Net Profit Eefore Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 867341 3680.56
Adjusted for:
{Profit) / Loss on Sale / Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) (413.43) 1.38
Depreclation 2026.31 171147
Interest Income (121.54) (182.92)
Finance Costs 2040.43 2758.08
Qperating profit before working capital changes 12204.77 7968.24
Adjusied for:
(Increasa) / decrease In Trade and Other Recelvable (2040.96) 258.44
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial labilities 163.48 {408.11)
Increase/ {decrease) in other Uabilities 85.25 129429
Increase/ {(decrease) in provisions 77.68 42,54
(Increass) / decrease In Inventorles {4966.50) {1585.98)
Decrease/ (Increase) in loans 24,95 (306,18}
Decrease/ (increase) in other current financial assets (2027.98) (263,64}
Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets (652.63) 381.65
{Increase) / decrsase in Other Non Current Assets (49.83) 0.59
Decrease/ {increase) in other non-current financial assets (10.12) {23.58)
Increase / (decrease) in Trade and other Payables 3323.03 399,08
Cash generated from operations 6124.12 T759.37
Income tax pald 1775.46 674,97
Net cash fiow from / (used In) operating activities (A): 4348.66 7084.40
B Cash flow from investing actlvitles:
Purchase of fixed assels (2572.28) {3122.06)
Capital advance/Capital creditors (net) (913.33) (380.94)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 58.98 37.87
(Profit} / Loss on Sale / Discard of Property, Plant and Equipmant {Net) 41343 (1.36)
Bank balance other than cash & cash equivalents (201.88) {116.86)
Interest income 121.94 182.92
Net cash from / (used In) investing activities (B): {3093.15) (3400.52)
C  Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings {net) (667.78) 542.33
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net} 1272.00 (1447.12)
Interest paid {2040.43) {2758.08)
Net cash from / {used in} financing activities {C}: (1338.21} (3862.87)
Net Increase / {decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {80.70} 21,01
Gash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 149,57 128.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 88.87 149.57
* Comgprises:
Cash on hand 18.40 24,59
Balancas with banks
(i} In current accounts 49.34 114.87
(ii} In EEFC accounts 0.13 10,41
68.87 5
Notes:
These earmarked account balances with banks can be utlise (T}ny rthe specific identified purposes.
See accompaying notaes to the Financial Statements !
As per our Report of even date: W For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

For PRYD & Assoclates (Subash Singh Virdi} M M

Chartered Accountants Exscutive Director

{Binod Kumar Mishrza) )
Chiaf Finance Offlcer

Membaership No.: 094667
Placa: New Dethi JL.GM Legal & Company Sacretary
Date: July 21, 2021 M No: FCS 6428

mma)

{Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
.—&‘ w Managing Director
apiamt——

DIN - 00054110

(Samir Gupta)
Whole Time Director
DiIN - 00054308
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STAR WIRE {INDIA) L IMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021:

A Corporate information

Star Wire (India) Limited (SWIL), a mini steel plant is engaged in manufacturing of castings, forging and rolled products from alloy steels, super
alloy steel, high grade stainless stesl and special steels which find application in diversified engineering fields like autormobiles, aerospace,
super critical power plants ete. SWIL originally incorporated in 1963 was taken over by the present management in 1981.

Name: Star Wire {India) Limited {SWIL)

Date of incorporation : July 4, 1963

Corparate Identity Number (CIN} issued by MCA: U27109DL1963PLC 117600

Constitution: Limited Company

Industry: Engineering / Mini Steel Plant

Registered & Corporate COffice:-

Registered Office — 35, Link Road, 2Znd Floor, Lajpat Nagar-iil,

New Delhi-110024

Project sites

Plant1:

21/4, Mile Stone, Mathura Road, Ballabgarh,

Faridabad, (Haryana)

Plant I

Village Chhainsa, Baltabgarh, Faridabad, (Haryana)

B Significant accounting policies:

B.1

B.2
(a}

{b)

{c}

{d}

Basis of aceounting and preparation of financiaf statements

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except for certain Fixed Assets which are carried at
revalued amounts and certain {inancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees (%), rounded off to the nearest rupees in lakhs.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared 1o comply with the Indian Accounting standards {'Ind AS'), including the rules
notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 20143.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Flant and Equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates and include amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset 1o its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adiustments arising
from exchange rate variations atiributable to the assets.

Subsequent expenditures related {0 an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are added to its book value only If they increase the future
economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use are disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Staterment of Profit and Loss.

Bepreciatioen on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM). Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the

assels as prescribed in Schedule Ii to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assets, where useful life is different than those
prescribed in Schedule k;

Particular Depreciation
Property, Flant and Equipment Over its useful life considered as 30 years as technically assessed
Iron & Sieel Industries - Rolling Mill Rolls Over its useful life considered as one year as technically assessed

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. For new projects, direct expenses and direct overheads including interest on Borrowed funds for the
acquisition of Assets are capilalized fill the assets are ready for intended use.

Intangible Assets

Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost, Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Finite-life intangible asse!s are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful fives.
Intangible assets which are not ready for their intended use are disclosed as ‘Intangible assets under development'.

A summary of amortisation / depletion policies applied to the Company's Intangible Assets to the extent of depreciable amount is as follows:

Particular Amortisation / Depletion
Computer Software Over a period of 5years
Others Over the period of agreement of right to use

The amortisation peried and the amortisation method for Intangible Assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at each reporling date.
Research and Development Expenses:

As a matfer of policy, Revenue expenditure on research & development is charged to the Profit and Loss Statement under the natural head of
account in the year in which it is incurred and Capital expenditure on research & development is accounted for as the normal expenditure.

Finance Cost:

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from fareign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment 1o the
interest cost. Berrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
such assets. A qualifying asset s ane that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs
agg charged o the Profit and Loss Statement in the pericd in which they are incurred.



STAR WIRE (INDIAY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021:
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taventories:

Finished and semi-finished products produced and purchased by the Company are carried at lower of cost or net realizable value. Worlk-in-
progress Is carried at cost. Cost has been ascertained under retail method i.e. selling price less Gross profit because the company is engaged
in the business as manufacturer of tailored items as per orders received. The range of these tailored iterns is very wide in terms of quality, value
and also quanlity. To be very specific the sales value of each item in the range of ~ Rs. 42/ per Kg to ~ Rs. 3600/~ per Kg. In view of this the
company has opted to value the closing stock applying Retail method being only appropriate method on the given facts and circumstances.

Raw materials & Components are carried at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Stores and spare parts are carried at cost. Necessary provision is made and charged to revenue in case of identified absolete and nen-moving
items.

Cost of raw materials, Components, stores and spares, trading and other products are determined on weighted average method,

Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Profit and Loss Statement of the year in which
the related service is rendered.

Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Statement far the year in which the
employee has rendered services. The expense is recognised at the present value of the amounts payable determined using actuarial valuation
techniques. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Profit and Loss
Statement. The Cempany pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with the Company at the time of
resignation/superannuation. The gratuily is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972.

The provisions towards accrued leave and post-retirement benefits {o employees / [egal heirs of the deceased employees under the Employees’
Family Benefit Scheme, are computed at the time of payment on actual basis, based on Company’s Policies. Thus IND-AS-19 has been
complied with,
Tax Expenses:
The lax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss. :
i) Current Tax: Current tax assets and [abilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the Income Tax
authesities, based on fax rates and laws that are enacted at the Balance sheet date.
ii) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities in the Financial
Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liabitity is settled or the
assel realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed al the end of each reporting period.
Foreign Currency Transactions:
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction or that approximates
the actual rate a! the date of the seitlernent of the transaction.
Monetary assets & liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are reported at the same rates. ltems which are covered by
forward exchange contracts are also reported at the same rates and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognised over the life of the
coniract. Non-monetary items are carried at cost. Management is of the view that the adjustment on account of differences in exchange rates at
the year end is very nominal and will not affect the basic information reported in this statement.
Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement ar on translation is recognised in the Profit and Loss Statement,
excepl in case of long term liabilities, where they relate to acquisifion of Fixed Assets, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of
such assets.
Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from sale of goods is recagnised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of
the consideralion is probable, the associated cost can be estimated refiably, there is no continuing effective control or managerial involvemnent
with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance of agreed contractual task has been completed.
Revenue from operations is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government,
Interest incormne from a Financial Assets is recognised using effective interest rate method.,
Financlal Instruments;
{a} Financial Assets:
All Financial Assets are recognized at fair value, Transaclion costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of Financial Assels,
which are not at Fair Valug Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), are adjusted fo the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of
Financial Assets are recognised using trade date accounting.
Investments in unquoted & quoted equity
Non Current investments in equity shares, quoted & unquoted, are stated at market & book value respectively.
{b) Financlal Liabilitles:
All Financial Liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of ditectly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
direclly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
Derivative Financlaj Instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments presently forwards & options lo mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair vatue on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into.
Any gains or losses on the close of the transaction are taken directly fo Statement of Profit and Loss,
mancial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet.



STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

{I} Earnings per Share:
- The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s Earnings per Share (EPS} comprise the net profit after tax. The number of shares used
in compulting basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Provisions & Contingent Liabillties:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present ohligation (legal or construciive} as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefils will be required to settle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation,
Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence wilf be confirmed by the
occurrence or nen uccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present
obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a refiable estimate of the abligation cannot be made.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets or group of Assets, called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an
asset or CGU is estimated to delermine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company eslimates the recoverable amount of the CGU fo which the asset belongs.
{0} Use of Estimates:
The estimales and judgments used in the preparation of the financial siatements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on
historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be
reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results
are Known/ materialised,
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that oceurred after that date but provide additional
evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.
(p) Government Grants:
Government granis are not recognised untit there Is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching {o them
and that the granis will be received.
Government granis are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are -
credited to Profitand Loss on a steaight-line basis over the expected lives of related assels and presented within other income.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities:
Schedule Iil to the Companies Act, 2013 requires assets and liabiliies to be classified as either Current or Non-gurrent.
I. An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;
(i) ltis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
{ii} ltis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
{iii) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or
(iv) ltis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve manths after the
All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current.
I A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
() It is expected fo be seltled in the Company's normal operating cycle;
(i} kt is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(i} 1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
(iv) The Company does not have an uncenditional right o defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Al liabilities other than current liabilities shall be ¢lassified as non-current,

{m!

{n

(q

€ Critical Accounting Judgments And Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires management lo make judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could resuit in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in next financial years.

{a) Depreciation / Amortisation and useful lives of Property Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets:
Property, -Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated usefut lives, after taking infe account
estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the
amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the
Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technolegical changes. The depreciation f amorfisation for
future periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

{p) Recoverability of Trade Receivables:
Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those
receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated fulure payments
and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

{c) Provislons:
Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future oufflow of funds resulting from past
cperalions or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liabitity

~reqyires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject te change. The carrying amaounts of provisions
LpEHIilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and gircumstances.




STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021:

{a)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, [f any indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units
{CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
ils recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken inte account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation mode! is used.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

w I Ne impairment provisions for Financial Assels are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The Company
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-03-2021

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31st March, 2020

Note - 2: Investments - Non-current
INVESTMENTS, AT FVTOCI
- It Fully Paid Equity Shares:
Quoted:
24500 Shares of T 2/~ each in Supreme Commercial
Enterprises Lid, Delhi
500 Shares of ¥ 10/~ each in Auto Pins ([) Ltd, Delhi

Unquoted:
30000 Shares of ¥ 2/- each in Eagle International I_td,
Belhi
24000 Shares of ¥ 2/- each in Juhi Leasing & Finance Ltd,
Belhi

72000 Shares of ¥ 10/- each at a premium of Rs 90/~ in
Star Wire (I} Engineering Lid, Delhi
4400 Shares of ¥ 10/- each in Star Wire (I) Engineering
Lid, Delhi

Note - 3: Non-Current Loans (Unsecured, considered qood)
Security and other deposits
Loan {o Employees

Note - 4: Other Non-Current Financial Assets {(Unsecured, considered good)

Bank Deposit with more than 12 months maturity

Note - 5: Other non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances o other than related parties
Prepaid expenses

Note - 6: Inventories

Raw materials

Work-in-progress

Good in-Transit

Finished goods (Including Goods lying in godowns cutside India)
Stores and spares

65.31 64.89
0.05 0.04
3.59 3,53
244 2.44

56.58 55.74
3.46 3.41
131.43 130.04
1035.29 1064.09
14,16 4.46
1049.45 1068.55
121.41 111.29
12141 191,29
1216.60 17270
49.83 0.00
1266.44 172.70
5878.07 3,179.56
3503.88 2,649.32
58.28 -
11025.34 9,996.83
2370.19 2,043.56
22835.76 17869.26




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-03-2021

STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

{Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Note - 7: Trade receivables {(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months 2186.68 2507.28
Others 18935.26 16573.71
21121.94 15080,99
Note: Trade receivables include debts due from:
Private companies in which any director is a director or member 908.43 685.43
909.43 695.43
Note - 8: Cash and cash equivalents
(i) Cash & Bank balances:
Cash on hand 19.40 24.59
Balances with banks
{i) In current accounts 49.34 114.87
{iiy In EEFC accounts 0.13 10.11
68.87 149.57
Note - 9:Bank balances other than Note - 8 above
In earmarked accounts
(i) In fixed deposit accounts 397.90 354 .41
(i} Unpaid CSR Account 158.39 0.00
556.29 354.41

(i) The balances are denominated and held in Indian rupees.

(it} Earmarked balances with bank represents balances held for unpaid dividends,unpald CSR and margin money against issue of bank

guarantees & letter of credits,

Note - 10: Loans - Current (Unsecured and Considered Good)
Loans and advances to employees

Note - 11: Other Financial Assets - Current
{i) Goods & Service Tax receivable
{iiY VAT credit receivable
{iii) Duty Draw Back credit receivable
_{iv) Advance income tax (net of provisions) TDS, TCS receivable

Advance Income Tax {Net of Provision}
At start of year

Charge for the year - Current Tax

Tax paid (Net) during the year

At the end of year

Note - 12: Other current assets (Unsecured and Considered Good
Prepaid expenses

Advances to Suppliers

To related parties

E8o™, To other than related parties

u’_ “!

41.30 4716
41.30 47.15
1694.86 300.32
6.06 6.06
763.55 130.10
555.67 507.14
3020.14 943.63
507.14 437.33
1726.94 525.31
1775.46 595.13
555.67 507.14
26.07 157.88
779.41 716.30
1145.31 416.96
1950.79 1291.16




STAR WIRE {IND! ED
Motes te the Finanglal Statements for the year onded 31-03-2021

{Rs in Lakhs}
Particulars As at As at
3ist March, 2021 313t March, 2020
Note - 13: Share Capita]
AUTHORISED;
28,60,00,000 Equity Shores of T - each 290000 2800.00
{29,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ {/-each)
£0,00,000 4% Non Cumulative Redeemabla Preferance Share of € 10- Each® 600.90 600.00
(60.C0.000) 4% Non Ol i F Share of £ 165~ Eagh*
3500.00

1SSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID Hf:
279047500 Equily Shares of T 1/- each fully pais up 275045 279048
(ZTS{HTS00 Equily Shares of ¥ 1/- aach fully paid up

TTEY004E T
{i} Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
A at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 ¥arch, 2620
Class of shares I Name af $harcholder Number of Humbser of
shares held % hetd sharey held * held
Equity shares with vetlng rights
Mohinder Kumar Gupta 42020000 15.06% 42030000 15.06%
Juni Leasing & Finance Limited 105076000 37.65% 105070000 37.65%
Samir Gupla 26863125 953% 25863125 9.63%
Abhlshek Gupta® 33619375 12.05% 15855000 568%
Shares under dispute between two individual Share hokders - - 24580375 8.81%
Total 207582500 74.39% 214407500 76.84%

" Out of tatad shargholding of Mr Abhishek Gupta, he owns 8882375 equity shares foinlly with Ms Minat Gupta

Shares under dispute has baen alloted ameng lamify membars as below, as per direclion of Hon'ble High Court of Dol vide i ordor daled Jan 24th,2020 and there is no
dispute on Lhe same now

Hame of Sharaholder Ne ol shares
Amisha Gupla 13,060,000
Amisha Gupta {Cn behalf of Bhagwati Steel Syndicate) 55,25,000
Abhishek Gupta & Minat Gupla 80,82,375
Abhishek Gupta 88,82,000
2,4529,375
{li} The reconeliiation of the number of shares outstanding |s set out below :
Particulars T As a1 31 March, 2021] Az al 31 March, 2020
b ' No. of Shares | No. of Shares
Equity Shares at lhe beginning of the yoar 219047600 275047500
Addition / Reduction during the year i 0
£guity shaces L the end of the yeac 275047500 LZELLE
{i¥#) The rights, powers and proferences relaling to share capital and the gualificalions, limitations and restrictions thereof are sontained in the Memarandum
and Articles of A fation of the Company. The principal rights are as below:

Ordinary Shares of Re 1 each

{a) In respecl of every Cidinary Shase (whether fully paid or parlly paid), voling right shall ba in the same proportion as the capital paid up on such Ordinary Shate bears fo
1k tolal paid up Ordinary Capilal of the Company.

(0} Thae dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subjuct to the approval of the sharchafders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in casa of inferim
dividend.

(€) In the event of Equldation, the shareholders of Ordinary Shares ore eligible 1o recelve the remaining assets of the G y after gi ion of all pref ial

In preportion to their shareholding.

Hote - 14: Othar Equity
Caplial reserve:

As per last Balance Sheet $0.00 50.00
General Reserves:
As per last Balance Sheet 47583 475.83
Revaluation Reserves:
As por last Batance Sheat B17.42 81742
Securilies premlum resesve;
As per last Balance Sheet 722488 722488
Retained Earnings:
As per last Balance Sheet 2919237 24993.11
Add: Profit for the year 649917 418597
Less: Approprialions
tmpact of Ind-AS 1408 060
Closing balance IHGTT.456 2917829
QOther Comprahansive Income {OCI):
As pior last Balance Sheet {7243} {13.89)
Add: Movemant in OCI {Not) during the yoar (5.40) 156.44)
77.83] {243}

Total 43567.75 - 3747309




STAR WIRE {|NDIA} EAITED
. Hotes to the Financlal S$iatemonts for tha year ended 34-02-2021

{Rs In Lakhs}
Padiculars Asat Asat
315t March, 2021 31t March, 2020
MNole - 15: Borrowings
{2) Secured
{l} Term Loans: §0
- HOFC Bank Limitad 2294.1% 353214
- Axis Bank Limited 477745 506345
- Federal Bank Limited 2659.62 188.50
- Kolak Mahindrs Bank Limiled 3953.61 4750.67
13584.19 t4540.76
{b) Unsecurad
{i} From related pariias:
Corporate Loans:
+ W5 Nipin Stee} Pyt Limitadd 325 03
- hifs Sun Source Leafin Pyt Uimited 47.08 63,77
Other than Corporate Leans:
-~ Stti Abhlshek Gupla 3Jz.78 263,39
- Stii Mohindar Kumar Gupta 75.94 70.64
- Sty Samir Gupla 41960 sl
~ 5mt. Rekha Gupla 367.80 346,59
- Smt. Mahlma Gupta 4256 29.62
- 5hil Sita Ram Gupta 0.00 2112
12686.08 1155.97
{liy 4% Hon G F Share of € 10/ Each* 254,05 254.05
4% Non Ci i ¥ Share of T 10/ Each** 100.00 100.60
354.05 354.05
15324.31 1605478
HNote:@
1.Tesm Loans from banks are secured by (st chargs by way of an equitable merigage of immovable propedies, both present and fultre, siluated st Vill Chhainsa,
Faridabad admeasuring 32.758 Acres, and by a first charga by way of hypothecation of att the Company's including hinary, machinery spargs, tocls and

accessories, presenl and fulure, and by second par possu charge by way of hypothecalion of present and fulure slock of raw materials, goods in process, finished and
monulactured goods togathar with components. spares and Book-Dobls / Receivables. Tarm Loans are also secured by the guarantees of Shri M K Gupta, Shid Samir
Gupla and Shil Abhishek Gupta Direclors of lhe Company, Term Loan from Federal Bank is furlher secured by first charge on Land ot Tehsil Ballabgarh Village
Chhainga. Faridobad admeasuring 21.62 Acres.

* The permission of NCLT has been ablained regarding re-lssue of Preference Shares on same terms & conditions for 10 years |e. the same will be redeemed not later
than Aug,2020

** These Preference shares are to be redecmed on of before 10th Febnsary, 2020,

Maturity Profite of secured Term Loans are as set out below ¢

1 Matutity Profile [ Non-Current] Current
[AboveSyears[ 15years | Jomt | 1 yoar
HDFC Bark Limited 0.00 2294501 2204.11 1237.00
Federsl Bank Limited 0.00 2669.02 265902 2833
Axis Bank Limiled 0.00 471745 4777.45 1292,00
Ketak Matindra Bank Limited 620.28 333393 3953.61 533.33
Total 620.28 $3063.91 13584.19 35%5.67
MNote - 16: Pravisions - Non-Curient
Provision for employee henelils:
Gratuity 814.91 732,90
81491 732,90

Nate - 17: Income Tax
A, Income Tax Expenses ! {Benefiis)

The Company is subject to Incoma tax in India on {ha busis of financial slatements. As per Section 145BAA of tncome Tax Act, Lhe Gompany is liable to pay income tax at
1he effective tax rate of 25,168 %

Companles can claim for tax exemptions/deductions urder specific secion subject to fulfiment of preseribed conditions as may be spplicable,

Businass loss can be carriod forwnard for a maximum pariod of eighl assessment years immadialely succooding the assossment year (o which th loss pertalns.
Unabsorbed depreciaion can be carrie¢ forward for an indefinite pariod,

The reconciliation of astimated incoeme tax to income tax expense Is as helow:

Profitffoss)before tax 8673.41 3680.56
Applicable Tax Rata 25.168% 25.168%
Compuled Tax Expense 2182.92 926,32
Tax effectof -
(i) Expenses disallowed 26.95 2197
(i} Tax on income at different rates {3563} 0.00
(iii) Addilional allowances net of MAT Creit 0.00 000
(iv) Effact of change in Tax Rate 0,00 {1537.85)
Current Tax Provislon 2174,24 S584.45
Elfectiva Tax Rate 25% -16%

#. Deferrod Tax Liability (Het}
The movernent on the deferred tax account is as Tollows:

Al the start of the year 5496.98
Charget{credit) to Statement of Profil and Loss (1129.42)
At the end of year 4367.56
Companent of Dalerrad tax labilitles ! {asset)
. Chargel
o o LT R
1st Aprif, 2020 Profit 1st Aprll,2021
20d Logs
Deferred tax liabililtes J [asset) inn ralation ta:
Properly, Plant and Equipment and Inlangible Asset 4599.43 446.91 5046.39
Provisions (231.62) (143} (233,35}
Total 4367.56 A445.49 4813.04
Mote - 18: Other non-current Liabilliles
Govemnment Grant (EPCG) T64.79 79149
T64.79 791.4%



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-03-2021

STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31st March, 2020

Note - 19: Borrowings
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks (Secured})
Working Capital Loans #
- State Bank of India
- HDFC Bank Limited
- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
- Yes Bank Limited
- Axis Bank Limited
- Citi Bank,N.A.
- Federal Bank Limited
Other loans and advances (Unsecured)}
Foreign Currency Loans - Buyers Credit
- Axis Bank Limited

« HDFC Bank Limited

1933.83 6527.99
6707.15 6695.76
369.98 487.55
864.07 1035.29
1857 .67 1955,18
4954.93 0.00
415.57 0.00
932.19 645.56
§66.12 272.19
18891.52 17619.52

Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings:
(i). Working Capital Loans are secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Company's stocks and book-debts, present and
future and by a secend charge on all the movable properties of the company including plant and machinery spares, tools and accessories and
other movables both present and future and by a second charge on all the immovable properties situated at Vill. Chhainsa, Faridabad,
admeasuring 32,756 Acres. The Working Capital Loans are also secured by the guarantees of Shri M K Gupta, Shri Samir Gupta and Shri
Abhishek Gupta Directors of the Company.

(if}. Working Capital Loans from State Bank of India is further secured by extention of charge by way of equitable maorigage of immovable
properties, bolh present and future, situated at Ballabgarh, Faridabad.

(iif}. Security creation in respect of working capital loan sanction by Citi Bank vide their letter dated 21st Jan, 2021 and amended vide letler
dated 29th Jan, 2021 for Rs. 8200 Lacs (availed- Rs. 4954.93 Lacs as on reporting date) is yet to be completed.

Note - 20: Trade payables

(a} Creditors for supplies and services 7695.24 4322 51
(b} Creditors for accrued wages and salaries 224.55 274.25
7919.79 4586.76
Note - 21: Other Financial liabilities - Current
Current maturities of long-term debt 3595.67 3432.99
Due to Employees 4329 4715
Expenses payable 50.21 12.68
Creditors for Capital Expenditure 47777 347.19
Statutary rernittances (Contributions to PF and ESIC,
Withholding Taxes, GST, VAT etc.) 318.33 177.98
Trade / security deposits received 69.16 79.69
4554.42 4097.68
Note - 22: Other current liabilities
Advances {rom customers 1652.96 1541.31
1652.96 1541.31

Note - 23: Provisions - Current
y!sfon for Graluity 169.39 244.33
Q%-.. rgigions for CSR 237.58 158.39
AN 406.98 402,72




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-03-2021

STAR WIRE (INDIA)} LIMITED

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March-21 March-20
Note - 24: Revenue from operations
Indigenous Sales 39713.66 40147.04
Export Sales 23555.99 23165.52
63269.64 63312.56
Less: GST Recovered 6123.13 742975
Total A 57146.51 55882.80
Note - 25a: Operating income
Testing Charges Received 330.85 294.87
Income from sale of Unusable Material 158.71 288.04
Export Incentive 1124.38 797.73
Total B 1613.94 1380.64
Note - 25b: Non-operating income
Interest Received 121.94 182.92
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment 423.05 0.00
Other Income 101.57 19.10
Government Grant (EPCG) 26.40 16.34
Total C 672.97 217.36
Note - 26: Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock 3179.56 3733.89 -
Add: Purchases including Freight Inward Charges 22369.08 19330.41
Less: Closing stock 5936.35 3179.56
Cost of material consumed 19612.28 19884.74
Note - 27: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 11025.34 9996.83
Work-in-progress 3503.88 2649.32
Stock-in-trade 0.00 0.00
Inventories at the beginning of the vear:
Finished goods 9996.83 9578.36
Work-in-progress 2648.32 1253.05
Stock-in-trade 0.00 2,32
Net (increase) / decrease (1883.08} (1812.42)




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-03-2021

STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED

{Rs in Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars
March-21 March-20
Note - 28: Employee benefits expense
- Salaries and wages
Salaries 1633.76 1877.69
Wages 213.30 238.02
House Rent Allowance 422.13 534.50
Conveyance Allowance 144,55 222,82
Medical Allowance 86.79 127.86
Special Allowance 66.85 194.40
Good Work Award 161,18 194.53
Production Bonus 45,26 57.37
Stipend 27.58 74.71
Leave Encashment 80.02 94,60
l.eave Travet Concession 46.30 73.39
Bonus 345.29 356.33
Notice Pay 10.60 2.25
Recniitment Expenses 0.36 3.28
Security Charges 129.81 136.37
Uniform Expenses 1.74 29.74
Discounting value of interest free loans to employees 0.7 1.21
= Contributions to provident and other funds
Beposit Link Insurance Fund Charges {Staff) 222 2.64
ESI Contribution 11.47 2047
PF Administrative Charges 10.47 12.58
PF Contribution 212.24 247.42
- Staff welfare expenses
Labour Welfare 9.53 19.07
Medical Expenses 5.80 10.56
Staff Welfare 78.45 99,83
Welfare Fund 8.7¢ 7.59
- Employees’ Retirement Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 144.86 149.16
Retrenchment Compensation 4,56 6.43
Retirement Benefits 6.08 8.57
3908.41 4803.36
Note - 29: Finance costs
(2} Interest expense on:
- Interest on borrowings 1827.89 247506
- Dividend on Redeemable Preference Shares & Taxes thereon 14.16 12.80
- Interest on Delayed / deferred payment of Govt dues 2.60 0.05
- Interest on Unsecured Loans 99.39 120.82
- Other borrowing costs (Bank Charges) 96.39 149.25
2040.43 2758.08
Note - 30: Other expenses
30. a - Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of stores and spare parls 7339.62 9506.81
Contract Charges 4430.53 504579
Conversion & Stitching Charges 173.15 149.88
Increase / (decrease) of GST on inventory # 0.00 (1280.28)
Machining Charges 713.78 893.18
Power and fuel 8949.56 8796.75
Testing Charges 140.02 66.77
21746.65 23178.90

# GST shown under Manufacturing Expenses represents the difference between GST on opening and closing stock of finished

goods respectively.

The details of R&D expenses inculded in the natural head of accounts are as follows :-

(Rs. In Lacs)
Paticulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31ist March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Consumption of Materials 284.13 343.00
Conversion Cost 35,79 58.88
Total 319.92 401.88




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-03-2021

(Rs in Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars
March-21 March-20
36.b - Administrative Expenses
Books & Periodicals 0.18 072
Charity & Donation 0,00 0.91
Directors Remuneration* 143.24 215.60
Directors Travelling Expenses 4.01 10.02
Electricity & Water Charges 24,63 23.36
Foreign Tours & Travelling Expenses 0.52 30.05
Foreign Tours & Travelling Expenses (Directors) 3.55 28.99
General & Miscellaneous Expenses 40.51 1.64
IT Expenses Inculding SAP 144.59 15.95
Insurance Charges 245.29 199.08
Keyman Insurance Policy 0.60 5.00
Lass on Sale of Vehicle 9.62 1.36
Meeting & Conference Expenses 0.34 0.02
Audit Expenses ** 12.38 12.77
Postage & Telegram Expenses 7.36 8.79
Printing & Stationery 32.54 26.75
Professicnal & Consultancy Charges 363.59 330.40
Rent 9237 85,03
Rates & Taxes 17.31 18.15
Repair & Maintenance - Civil 194.59 424,66
Repairs and maintenance - Electrical 18.77 18.36
Repair & Maintenance - General 28.83 24.97
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 182,70 23443
Repair & Maintenance - Vehicles 50.00 66.28
Subscription & Membership Fees 16.06 9.81
Telephone Expenses 19.58 20.20
Travelling & Conveyance 154.84 198.88
Provisicn for CSR*** 89.99 93.02
1897.41 2105.20
* Remuneration paid / payable to Directors:
Managerial remuneration paid or payable during the period which
is much less than the prescribed under Comnpanies Act, is as
under:-
Salary 143.10 215.40
Directors' Sitting Fees 314 0.20
143.24 215.60
** Payments to the auditors comprises {net of GST input
credit, where applicable):
(a} Auditors - Statutory Audit
Statutory Audit Fees 2.50 2.50
Reimbursement of expenses 0.33 0.60
2.83 3.10
(b} Cost Auditors
Audit Fees 1.50 1.50
Reimbursement of expenses 1.05 1.17
2.55 2.67
{c) Others
Tax Audit Fees 7.00 7.00
12.38 12,77
*** Details of CSR Provision
Opening Balance 158,39 80.67
Add:-Provision made during the year 89.99 93.02
Less:- Expenses made during the year 10,80 15.30
Closing Balance (As shown in Note No 23 of Balance Sheet) 237.58 158.39

* Closing Balance as on 31st March, 2020 of Rs 158.39 Lacs has been transferred to Unpaid CSR Account with
Axis Bank Limited during the year as required under Section 135 of Compaines Act, 2013




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-03-2021

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

{Rs in Lakhs}
Faor the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars
March-21 March-20

30.c -Selling & Distribution Expenses
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 540 16.79
Commission & Brokerage 58.39 100.90
Entertainment & Sales Promotion Expenses 10.07 33.21
Rent (S&D) 93.35 87.01
Freight and forwarding 1196.66 842.79
Custom Duty Paid On Overseas Sales 46.66 45,25
Bad & Doubtful Debts written off 0.00 31.83
Trade Fare & Exhibition Expenses (incudling Tender fees) 1.08 13.45
' 141160 1174.23

—



- STAR WIRE (IHDIA} LIMITED
Hotes ta the Flnanclal Staizments for the year ended 313t March, 2021

{R3.3n Lokhs}
Asat Asat
Pariculare Stat March, 2021 3151 Margh, 2020
Hote - 3 Addiionalinformalion %o t1a financiad sistements
4 Cenil Kabllites and {io the exlent ciot provided for)
% Contigont Jabiities
{a) Claims agaist the Compeny/ disputed Eabilies not scknowledned as dabl # 1488 44
&} Guamnioes
« Ikand 5580 6738
-Foreign ] i
(#) Commiumerits
{al i of contragly 0 o be expculad on capiel scoount Gnd ot provided for
= Tangibie a556is 2856 02
« Intangibia assats [
(&) Uncaliad £2bEty on shares and othes investments partly paid [1]
(o) Cther commimants (specily nature)
- 8% drrwn on cuslomerns and discovnted wilh banks atclosa of the yoar, 0 485
~Latias of Cradi pulstanding 2017 ]
= Undartaking Lo luld the axpon ohtigations (EPCG) 24 814
Chim the Compeny not as debl
“The company has nel depocked Local Area Devilopmant Tax {LADT} from 2044-05 to 2017-18 imposed by Haryana State Govemmenl as K was BOG &t
hol by the Henblko Supremo Court of India vide its order dated 30,10.2009 detal as under;
“There wibe na tecovery of lax 11 urher arders of this Court, subject 1o each and every assessse in this group of cases giving an undenaking
the i3t and ta this Coust that, In the aven? of thelr witimataly loting the matter, they $hal pay the emaunl dus with interest ot the rale that may be
fixgd by this Court bl the tanie of finzlheadng of the mattars,”
Domand Orders of Custom & Cenlral Excize Authoriies disputed by the Company 223 208
Bemand ol addéicn come Tax & intorost pending wih varlous appolate Authorites, disputed by tha Company 6% [

2 Details on derivatives instrumants and unhedaed forelan currency exposures
L Tha folowing dervalive posRions are open as at 31 March, 2021
(a) Forward axchange Contracts and oplisns [being derivative instruments], which ara nol ntendod fof trading of speculative
purpeses but for hedge purposas io eslabish the amount of seporing currency requedd & avaistle al tha setemant date of
carisin paynbles and recoivabing,
s, ing fppemrd

S March, 2021 N AX 31 313t March, 202
Az at Hat March, [ Awsiaistiarcn, 2020 ]
Curreacy Buy Fhalt Croas cumency. Anount {8} Cross currency | Amiounl (2}
- C Sel £77,00,000 TEE5 €85,84,668 €742
S 5ol ¥21,00,000 Ti5H §94.50,875 LAk
AED Sell AED O to
5 Buy 3o o
Toal 35163 L&L¥si]
B, The year-end fareign currency thal have not by & detivaiing & or 5@ &ro given below, The unhiedges exposures are naturally hedged by luture lorekn cumency eamings and
aanngs Inked to foreign cumency.
A Buyerg Credil:
As at 3st March, 2621 As ot 31st March, 7020
Recaivable! Hecelvable! {Payable} Recelvabiel Recelvablel [Pavabie)
{Pavable} I Forglan currency {Payable) In Eorelgn cumrency
IR (indicata amaunl wih WR {indicate amount with
cumency) ourtency}
1798 243181579 913 3527125142
9 £0.00 g E0.0D
1798 918
B, Packing Gredit n Forelan Gurreney (PEFE):
As at 3181 Mareh, 2021 As atI1st March, 2020
i Tvablef {Payabie) | ! i {Paygbla}
[Fayabie) in Forelgn gurrency [Payable} in Farelgn currency,
MR {indicate amaunt with BR {indicate amaunt with
gurgncy} cureney)
S 7 S— -y T NS 403, 359000955 |
. € 606754326 105 € 11.98.729,55
7917 153

+  Hota: The manegemani i of the view Ihat the provisien as desired In this ind-AS is having o very nomingl affect on our books of nocounts &
mgrenver, e same i alrgady laken in sccounts as & whea the seme accrues.

Furthermare, the ransactions invalred arg for a vary 3ma¥ period |.o. with Tn the range of 3 moaths la 6 menlhs and on this graund atg te
provision is not alfecting tha Rnanciat resuls of tha company,

Tha financial effact |e. nain ! lass) arisiaq out of such doviatien;

Pagticulars As ab 31t March, As at HstMarch,

2021 2020

|Qurtanive-Foreign Exchange Forwand Contract 349 1355}
PCFC 155 13
 Cred 18 42)
|£2p0d Trade Regor 4357 234
Import Trpdg Paynbles a0 k]

| Fargian Currgney 1L.ogn (190) (33

Totat 395 1100

7



STAR WIRE [IN[YA} { IMITI
Hotes 1o the Financiat Stalemants fof the year ended 31t March, 2021

Pareulars

As zt
315t March, 2021

{fts. In Lakns}
3

st Mareh, 2020

K

Disclesures roquired under Section 22 of the Micre, Smal and Madkim Enterprises Developmend Act, 2005
1) Prncipal amount dua and remaining urpaid b say suppfer as ol the end of the zccounting yoar

1) Interest duo nereon remaining unpaxd 1 any supcer &e at the end of tha eccountiog year

{8} Tha amount of inte:est poid sking with the amounts of he payment made to the swppSer beyand the appoited day

M) The amounl of interesi dup and payable for lhe veer
{¥) Tho amounl of inters51 Recrued and remalning Lnoaks of the end of tw eccaunting year
{#) The amaunt of furher intarest due and peyable evan in the uccoeding yeer, umtd such dite wihen the nterest Sues &3 stiove are actualy paid

Micro, Small & Medium
been relied upan by the auditars,

bave been

on the basis claima fusished by the suppliers In this regard. This has

.
Emnlovag benalit plans lind AS 15}

Dafned contribubon plans

The Company mokes Provident Fund cmﬁ:utbnn lo defnedt contrbudion plans for quakfng empioyees. Linder the Schemaos, the Company ks
requied lo & spocificd t2 fung Iho benckts, The Company recognised tha amount for Provident Fund
contributions bn the Statemenl of Profit and Lou Tho contibutons payath to these phns by the Company ara at rtes specifed i the fukss of
U

Cefined b@nnﬂ plant (Gratuiy)

Recencliialian of opsning end clhosing balances of Defined Benafit Obligation

Defried Benaft obigaten et bagnning of tha year

Cument Service Cost

fntaresl Cost

Actyariat{gain)d bas

Past Seniey Cast Including Curlaiiment Ganal Loss

Benefits pad

Celined Benefit cbEgatian at yearend

Expensey recognised dusing the year

In Income Slatemant

Cumenl Servica Cost

Ilarasl Cost

Past Servica Cost Including Curtalimont Gaing/ Lozs

Expocted retum on an assels

NatCas?

In Qther Comprehiansive Incoms

Actuarisd {gain) / loss

Expocted ratum on Phin 85seis

Nal {intome} Expense For the pariod Recognlsed [n OCI

Actuarial assumplionz:

Discount rete (per annum)

Salary escamation (Per Annum)

Attrition (Per Annum)

Horially (abkes

Operating Sagment roporting (ind AS 108)

Tha Company i engaged in manufaclure and L (Loth domestic and axpar) of Special Steel Products, which constitutes singls business
segmenl. AS per managamant’s perspoctive, te risks and retums from its saks do not materialy vary geographicely, Accardingly thers are no
othar businass { goegrophical segments Lo be zaported under Ind AS 508 issusd By the hattute of Chartored Accountants of indla,

Enzning Per Equlty Sham {of fte. 1/- each) {ins AS 31)

Nat Prof4 after tax as car of Profit and L

Weighted Averoge aumber of squity shares used as denaminator lor caicuhhng ERS
Basic Eamnings por tharg

Diuted Eamings per share

Face Valus per squity shate

Cenfirmation
¢ The computy hos requested Jor confirmplions of bekances irom s crediors and debtors, which has baan confinned by majorky of craditars and
dablors. Provisions, vigrever considered necessary, hiva been made.
‘i |hﬂ opirien nrl.rwmaﬂw;aﬂm( Ihe invesimant, cuirent / non curment assots are realizeblz al a value, at par as sWied, in the ordinary course of
5% and pravisins fer allknown aad detenmined Eabites am adequate and notin eazess ol tie amount stated.

Is o borrowlng costs c:nhalnd nd AS 23)
qWing costs cagkaised 2uiing the
-5 foayd asiets rwnial wark-n-proarass

Nl
N
N
Ni
M
Ny

212

TALM {2005-08)

218
213

If
|

Hi
2z
Ha

Hl
Hil
Ml

247

1031
T
7

(=)
]

i}
1123877

it
13
0

149

587
587



STAR WIRE {IHDIA) LIMITE]|
Hotes 1o the Financial Statemunts for the year ended 3ut March, 2021

{By.In Lakns)
Particulars Statbarcs, Tams Stat arets 2028,
bl larc: L arc
3 Ralated party disclosures (ind AS 24}

As parnd AS 24, tha disclosures of vansar.wns wﬂh tha retsted partles are given bobw,
il of refat s whatn conliol exs with vibom tanaactons ha

Relatianship

2 Mr, Suink Gupla

2 M, Abhishek Gupta Hey Mansgoemont Prersoongl
4 Ms. Mahima Gugta

5 Vs, Rexha Gupta

L} Mz, Sia Rem Gupta Rcklva of ey Monagement Persanngl
7 ks Sila Ram Mohincer Kumar

8 M5 Supreme Comm, Enterprises Lid

9 W3 Eagle inlemations! Limitsd

10 M's lntarglobal Steals P Limaed

1" Il Supersigma Alloy & Forgings Pt Limited

12 Mz AbhT Tradisg Company

13 M3 Juhikiasing & Fianta Uimitad

14 W9 Star Wire Elact P Limizad

15 Mls Star Wina () Rlomass P Liitad

16 HUs Star Wire (1) Engnesring Limited

17 Samswat charzable Trust

18 Shreo Radha Krshna Chastsbie Trust

19 Brijegivaor Dhamnath Sancthan over which #:
20 Mahawsr chartabl Trust Pamnnﬁmdmnkmmmsaeawwumﬁ
2 Ruljer Dharmarnh Sansthan =igaifcant influgnce
2 Hehawar Chatmarnth Sansthans

23 Mg Nipin Slael Privata Liméed

zh M5 Abhinandan Trofe Private Limized

25 hUs Cornfigwer Vinimay LLP

26 W3 Engol latemational LLP

w M5 Holysea Finwast Pvilid

8 M5 Kumet {india) PviLid

29 M/s Padmanabh Steal & Trading LLP

0 ks Polylnk Vinimay LLF

M KUs Sun Source Leafin Privata Limited

az Mz Surendra Brathers Engneers Private Lini!nd

33 WES, J Tea & Traders Limitod Liabty

&) Trensackons during ¢ witth retated porties:
Enterprises /
Assorlales over which
Sehe Haturg pf T Hey Relalive of kay Managem-:l dthole
reimbursemantz) Pesonnel Persoancl relatives are able tor
- exercise significant
Infiuence
1 Furchase of gosda kL]
{480)
2 Sok of goods 1054]
486
k] Intetast Rocoved -]
79)
3 Managertsl Renuneraton 143
{215))
4 Diddend Payment 14
{41
E Cantract Charges / Machining Charges 938
(gr2)
[} Rent 10 L
(16} {11)
7 Intecost Paid 93 1 5
(g} &3] @)
k] Diratiors Mealing Fees o
9
Balance as at kst March, 202
9 Paynblas il 216
9 255)
10 Untacured Loans 1236 a &0
{1072} {21 {&7)
" L 131
130)
A} Baik / Corporale Gunraniees 0|
0
12 Racenatlas 909
(695)
13 Laans & Advances Given 79|
(716)




T,
Hotes io the Financlal $tatemeats o2 the year ended 313t March, 2021

Wi NG AMITE

(Rs. Ia Lakhs}

Asat Asat
Particutare 31at Manch, 2021 315 Maroh, 2020
10 Impainnent of the Assets (nd AS 16)
In Entt with the requrements of Indian Ar.mun.hg sundard ~ 36 on "Inpaimment of Assets” ssuod by the instiula of Chanterad Accountants of lndia, the campany revigws the camying amount of s fed assots an each
balance sheet dats for he f Tany, by ing assels of critire oo phant os Cosh Genureling Und (CGU}. On such seview as ot M™ March 2020, wherever (here was indicsation of
impaiment, tha net reaizable valoe thetool was nssmed by the Manzgament and the same was mara than the eanying ameunl. On further roview a2 at 31% March 2025, thaso valuatons ol fhe apsets continue to be
highet than thar boek value and accordingly, no provision i requiced to bo mada in the accounts,
11 Value of Imperts calcutated on CF basls:
Ruw Materied & Stores 7875 T050
Capld pocds 55 359
Softwate Q 1]
TOL0AT AT
12 Expunditure I forelgn cumency:
Tsaveling 2 20
Commission & Brokerage 51 a7
Professional and consulation fees 82 kL)
Freinht Quiward 153 141
Testing Charpes 46 5
B Chanes [Forelan) w7 i}
Rant Charges 93 75
[LF) 06
13 Danails o1 of i and items;
fmporied
Raw Matorial and Storos & Spares T4BS5 7429
Totat 7485 —— 7433
Indiaenous = T —
Raw Matarial and Siwros & Spares 38467 21563
Totat S— —_— T
14 Earnings la feralan exchanse:
e of goads cakubted on FOR basis 23469 2752
— iy 1L
15 Fair valuo moosurement

Tha far value of the fnancial assats and Talrftles are inciuded ot the Bmaunt that would be received 10 68 an eessl 2nd paid to trangter o kabify in an wrdorly transaclion bstween market perticipants.

The !nliuwinq melhods and utumptinas wrere iad 10 aslimats the falr values:
Trad cashand

othas bank balantes, short larm loans, olher current fnancial assets, current Borrowings, trada payablas and other curtent fnancisl Eabties:
ﬂppmnnalu Ihe camying amounts largely due to thes shorldenm malurites of thesa instruments,

The pany uses the for and disch 1he falr value of financlal by
Tha fobowing is the basis lor categariting the Ensnclal instruments measired At far vaue into Leval § ko Leve) 3:
Lewvol 1: This knatlinchudoes finonclat azsets that are measund hyreluwm:e ko guotad prices {unadjusted) n ectve markets for Menlicnl nssots or Eabitios:

Lewad 2: This level incudes fnancial asesls and kebiities, measured using inputs othar than quated prices ncludad wihin Lovel 1 thal are shservebie for the asset or Eabigty, either divety (Lo, 98 prices} or Indirectly (le.,
derived from prices); and.

Level 3: This leve? Incid t and Fab®ies uslig inputs al sre nol based on market dBta ). Fal vakies are  wha'e ¢r in par, using 2 valuation modal
based on ions thal are nazha! supp by prices from currnnl markel wthe same nor &g they bused on avalable market data,
a1 M5t March,
Particufars Larrying amount Tovel ol Input Used I
- Lovell LevelZ Lavall
Financial Assate
At Amortised tost
Tradd receviable - - - -
Cash & cazh equivalents 21422 - - 24122
Bank tinkantas olher fian cash & cath equivalonts 63 - - 69
Loon 556 . - 558
Other financlal assots 1,091 . - 1083
ALFYTAOC]
Invesimant 1 - - 135
Flnanclal Liabllitles
AL Amortised cost
Buitowing 34216 - - 34,216
Trode payabies 7.4920 - - 7.92¢
Other fnancing abilties. 4554 = - 4554

As at 3551 March 2020

Particularss Carrying 3mount Lavel afInput used In
Leveli Levet2 Lavel3

Financial Assels
AL Amoniteed cost
Trade recaviable 19.084 - - 19,081
Cash & cash equiaknis 150 - - 150
Bank bok her than cash & cash 354 - - 354
Loan 1116 - - L1116
Othes fnancal agssty. 1,055 . - 4,055
AL FVTOC]
lvastment 130 - - 130
Flnanclal Llabilitien
At Amortised cout
Bonowiig 33,674 - B 93674
Trda payabias 4,597 - N 4,557

Dihet Inancial iabidtien 4,008 . - 4098




STAR WIRE {INDIA} LIMITED
Notes ta the Financial Stataments for the yoor anded J1st March, 202%

(Ra.In Lakha)

g Az at As at
i

Particulary 21st March, 3021 ot Marck, 3020,

16 Finnnclal Risk Managemant
The Company's managoment meniors snd manages Lhe fnancol nisks neating 1o tho eperstions of the Company, These risks inchide crodi risk, guldity isk and market risk {ncluding curroncy risk, Intorest rate fisk and

wther prico k),

Cradit righ

Crad rigk refoes 1o the sk Lhota porty will defaul on ] ions resuting & financiad kst fo the Company,

Financiatinetrumants thel are subject to liohy of credd rgk, princially consizl of balance with Fanks, ke debl lrado joens end edvances. None of the Franciat

instruments of the Company resuk in matanal concentretions of cradit risks,

The 854 analysts of irede recebnbles as of the belance sheet date have been conzidered from the due date and disclosad i butow Leble.

I iculars March 31,2021 | Asat March M, 2020

P40 6 madth 18,535 16,574

Miora than & monh 2187 2,507
Liguidity risk
The Company manages kquidity ek &y maintainng sdequatn reseoves, banking faciites and resenvo b ing faciites, by i W forecast and Nows, and by matching the maturily srofiles of
financizl azeats and Eabiies.
The sutplus fands with the Company and sperational cash Mows wit be sufficient to dispose the faangial EabFtes within the aturity porsd.

A3'at March 37,2021
G-1 yoar 15 year Beyoni£ 5 ygar Yot
24127 33064 620 Ir.e2
1520 7020
31883 - - 1.653
at March 31,7650
Partizularg 01 year 1.5 year Beynnd 5 year Tatal
Totra iFicB'&lrgwcmﬂlmMumya kong lem Emng 22,567 12,014 2527 AL107
2 Fayable 4,587 4,597
Tthet curent babaies 3,841 x - 150
Markgtrisk
Marketsisk is tha sk of any loss In utum vamings. In roatsable fak values or in futura cash fisws that My rosuk fom a chenge in tha prico of  financlal instrument. The Company’s activiles expoete B primanly to the
financhl risks of changos in foresg) y 20 rales and & ity risk which impact Markatrisk wre using sensithity analyshs.
Interest rate sk

Inlatest rete risk & Ihe rigk that ihe ek valie or fulure cash Bows of B faencial instrument wil fucluala bacouss of changet i matkel interest retes, The Company's exposure 1o tha risk of changes in market intevest rates
eftes primacify 1o Iha debl cbigabons with fosting intarest rales. The Company manages its inlesest fate sk by having u balanced porticks of fixed and vanabde rate bents and barrowings.

Exposurg 1o interes] raie risk

LR Az 3t
Particutars Harch M1.2021 Harch 31,2020
Toldl Borowings 7812 37,101
% ol Bonewings cul of shovg basning vanable rate ol interosl 49 A%y £7.48%]

Interest Rate sensitlvity:
Achanga of 100 bps In intorest rates woukd havi follwing $mpact on profi beforg by,

Azat Asal
Partievlar: March 1, 7021 March 31, 2020
109 bp icreasa wouks decrease the profi bafore @x by 183 176
160 bp decieass wouid Increass the profit befoto axby 189 176
Foreign curmancy risk management
The Company X Vi in foreign 10 exchange rate b ons arige. The camyng smounls o fie Company's faraign cunrency denominaled mongtary
assels and monatary kabdlas sl Uha end of the reporting pariod are 35 folows:
WErRITZ02T oz
As ai March 31 As at Warch 1,
Parteulars Forulga currency Forelgn cuinency Foraign curroncy Foralgn currency
fMorelary dsiels monelary ki 3 monglary 3gsets monetary Eabilitles
31 601489 B 24.91.149 86,731
RO £0,13,400 2720445 36,765,082 3280943
5 A516,959 - 50,20,763 -

Forelgn currengy senshivity

The lolowing table datols the Company's sensiivly fa @ 1% increase end decrease in BIR egeinst the relevant foroign curmencies. 1% Is the sensiivity rate Lsed when reporting lerefgn curancy risk intemnly lo kay
and rep ] hengs in forelgn exchanpe raigs. The sansithity s dnciud h ng Iocaign curancy moen!

Eems. A posifive number below indicales an inereasd in proft or equity wherg IR sirangthens 134 agansl the relevanl curancy. For o 1% weakening of R against tha relawant cumancy, lhere would ba a comparabla

knpasten Ihe profd or equily. and tha balances below would be negativa,

Pasticulars &5 at March 315027 ] RS aTMaTeh 532620
1% lncrease 1% Decrease i 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Forelgn cuirericy monalary asusle |
- Fid (283] 1 (19}
|EURT 52 (523] 31 [ELTE
AEDT ] ] 10 o) |
(CHY -
- {Fore gN EUrFEHCY itanelaty Lahibles
_{7] 7 n 1
(23} 23 {21}y F1d
pact on pralii or JoEw ¥ 5 the end of reporling year

In management's ofinisn, Lhe sensithdly Is is iva of the inhs [ [§ X.. #nthangt rick becuuse the erposure al the end of the reporting period does not sefiect the exposure duting Lh year,

Tha figures far ths corresponding previous yeds haye baen ragrauped f reclaesis

ieawherpvar nacessary, ba make them comoarnble,

As per out faporl of gven dale: Forkgd on Eshall of the Board of DL
o
For PRYD & Assoc N .
Chariernd Accou (Subasgh & .
Dirncior (Mobinder Kumar Gugta)

\ Managing Diactor
% DM - 00054110
(I

(Blred Kurnar Mrehra) [N

Chia!f Fingnce Olficar
(Rokha Shama) (Samir Gupla)
Phice: Naw Dahi JLGM Lenel & Compeny Secrolary Whaola Tane Dretio:
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